
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOARD MEETING

AGENDA

Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, October 23, 2OL9

5:30 p.m

5:30 p.m

6:00 p.m

Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below.
Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m.

1.0

3.0

OPENING BUSINESS:

Call to order and roll call

_Gabriel Leal, President

_Genaro Reyes
_Hubert "Wendall" Lower, Clerk

_Ray Odom
Rod Boone

2.O IDENTIFY CI-OSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBtIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

4.0
1.

2.

3.

4.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.
Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel lssue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, resignation,
dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.
Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District's Labor Negotiator, Superintendent
Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.
Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing l¡tigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified School
District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.
Conference with Reol Property Negot¡dtors. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, approximately
located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency Negotiator: Jeremy Powell,
Superintenden| Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified
School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

Report out oction token in closed session.

5.0 PUBLTC SESS|ON/FLAG SAIUTE:

6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

7.0 COM M UN¡CATIONS/REPORTS:

1. Board Member Comments/Reports.
2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports

a. Hamilton High School, Giovanni Martinez
b. Hamilton Elementary School, Ella Mendez

3. District Reports (written)
a. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p. 1)

b. Technology Report by Derek Hawley (p. 3)

4. Principal and Dean of Student Reports

a. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal

b. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students
c. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal
d. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 5)

5. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 7)

6. Superintendent Report byJeremy Powell (p.9)

PRESENTATIONS:

t. Nutrition Services Presentation by Sean Montgomery, Director of Nutrition & Student Welfare
8.0



9.0

10.0

11.0

12.o

13.0

14.0

CORRESPONDENCE:

1. None

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

1. North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District Rural School Bus Pilot Project Grant to HUSD based on
resolution number 18-19-105 (p. 13)

2. Hamilton High School Site Expansion Status Update by Mike Cannon (p. 65)
3. HUSD 2019 LCAP Local lnd¡cators Report (p.67)
4. Bond Status Update (p. 71)
5. HUSD Enrollment History for five years (p. 73)

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

1. CSBA Policy Guide Sheet (for below first readings) (p. 75)

a. First reading of Board Policy & Administrative Regulation 6174: Education for English Learners (p. 77)
b. First reading of Board Policy 6179: Supplemental lnstruction (p. 88)
c. First reaciing of Boarcj Byiaw 9321: Cioseci Session (p. 93)
d. First reading of Board Bylaw 9321.1: Closed Session Action and Reports (p. 94)

i. Delete BB - yes

ii. Delete BB - no

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board's jurisdiction will be heard
(agenda and non-agenda items). the Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15
minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon,

ACTION ITEMS:

1. CSBA Policy Guide Sheet (for below first readings) (p. 111)
a. Second read¡ng of Board Policy & Administrative Regulation 4218.7: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

(Merit System)
b. Secorrd reading of BoartJ Policy 5123: Promotion/Acceleration/Retention (p. 113)

i. Option 1

ii. Option 2

c. Second reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5136: Gangs (p. 117)
d. Second reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6742.2: World Language lnstruction (p. 125)
e. Second reading of Administrative Regulation 6145.2: Athletic Competition (p. 135)
f. Second reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6145.6: lnternational Exchange (p. 1a6)

2. HUSD Board Meeting Dates for 2020 (p. 153)

CONSENT AGENDA: ltems in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one motion.
There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public request
specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda approved by the
Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.
7. Warrants and Expenditures. (p. 155)
2. College and Career Access Pathways Partnersh¡p Agreement Appendix 2OI9-2O (p. 191)
3. MOU The Boys & Girls Clubs of the North Valley-GCOE-HUSD (p. 203)
4. Teacher Consent forms for 2Ot9-20 School Year - Hamilton Elementary and Hamilton High School (p. 213)
5. M¡nutes for regular Board Meeting on Septemb er 25, 2079 (p. 227)
6. Minutes for special Board Meeting on October 9,2079 (p. 269)
7. HES School Site Council Meeting Agenda for August 16,21tg lp.277l
8. HES School Site Council Meeting Minutes for August 76,2079 (p.2731



9. HES School Site Council Meeting Agenda for September 6,2O79 (p. 275)
10. HES School Site Countil Meeting Minutes for September 6,20L9 |p.277)
11. lnterdistrict Transfers (new only; elementarv students reapolv annuallv).

a. Out
i. Hamilton Elementary School

1. GradeTxl
2. Grade2xl
3. GradeKxl

ii. Hamilton High School
t. Grade 10 x 1

b. ln
i. Hamilton Elementary School

1. none
Hamilton High School

2. none
12. Personnel Actions as Presented:

a. New hires:

b. Resignations/Retirement:

15.0 ADJOURNMENT:





HUSD Maintenance Report

Board Meeting on October 23,20tg

Alan Joksch, Director of Maintenance and Transportation

Football and Volleyball

1. Our Fall sports are winding down for the Hígh School and the season is over for the Elementary.
The facilities have held up nicely, with just a few minor matters to take care of.

2. This month we have hosted one football game and driven to two. The long drive to Trinity is our
farthest this season.

3. Volleyball has had five home games and we have driven them to 4.

Busses

t. On September 30, CHP came to do our annual terminal inspection and bus certification. There
were a couple of minor things that they pointed out. They also gave me a few useful suggestions
on how I need to be performing my 45 day inspection on the fleet.

2. Considering this was my first inspection and the fact that the busses have over 150,000 mi. each,
I was pleased with the outcome.

3. We welcome Dallas as our newest bus driver. He has already been covering some afternoon bus
runs as well as driving to a couple of sporting events.

Facilities

I completed this year's Facilities lnspection Report.
o Given the age of many of our buildings and the fact that the maintenance staff is extra

busy trying to keep on top of everything, we are in good shape. When all totaled, we
received a (good)overall rat¡ng.

Maintenance Tickets

L This month we have accepted over 75 job tíckets. We have closed 90, with 15 still pending
2. The maintenance staff received training on the Spiceworks system and have become quite

proactive on acceptíng, taking care of, and then closing job tickets on their own.

T

1



2



HUSD Technology Report

Board Meeting on September 25,2OL9

Frank James, Director of Technology

Derek Hawley, lnformation Systems Technician

Completed and in Progress Tasks - October 2019

L. Staff and Faculty Support: During the month of September HUSD generated 87 new

technology tíckets. We closed 83 technology tickets and experienced a growth of 4
tickets.

2. Blackboard mobile App Project: We have had our first implementation meeting and we
have started the process of bringing the App online.

3. Copier/Business Solutions Project: We have signed the initial RMC contract and had our
first Project planning meeting (with RMC). We should be able to provide a projected

timeline within a week or so.

4. Power Down Process: ln preparation of a potential power outage, we have completed
the power down sequence at the High School. The Elementary School is close to
completion and we are moving forward on that process at this time.

5. HES Conference Room: MTO has mounted a70" monitor and Tech has equipped ¡t w¡th
a wireless display option. This will allow for better utilization of this room for meetings

and PD. This was fully utilized during our Quarterly Cabinet meeting on October l1th.

3



4



The Robles Report-Adult Education

Board Meeting on October 11,,2Ot9

Silvia Robles, Director of Adult Education

Guada lupe Mercado, Administrative Technician

Completed and in Progress Tasks - October 2019

t. Enrollment for all programs as of today
o Citizenship
o Computer Literacy in progress

o ESL

o Floral Design

o Forklift Signups October 24 &26
(2 paid 4 non pay)

o High School Diploma---
(5 wait list/Referral received, Adult Registration needed)

o lntensive ELD/Childcare Provider---------- 0
o Job Reentry Postponed Spring 2020

3. High School Diploma ongoing enrollment-Concurrent and Adults

4. California Core Performance Employment and Earning Survey training completed 9/L3/2079

5. First Quarter Report Due to CASAS (Comprehensive Adult Student Assessment Systems) Oct 31, 2019

o Report includes attendance, expenditures, DIR and testing components

6. Professional Development Plan Due to CDE October 3t,2OL9

7 . ldentify and select State Approved El Civics Objectives DUE Octob er 3L,2Ot9

8. Recruitment & enrolling for Forklift Training.

Next Section October 24 & 26,6pm-9pm & 8am-4pm., weather permitting.

10

9

9

0

6

18

ln progress First Quarter Report ending September 30, and due October 30th.2

a

9. Financial Services Presentation through Bank of America is scheduled for October 23,

2OI9 at Community Day, 7:00pm.

5



6



Hamilton Unified School District
General Fund - Unrestricted and Restricted

October 2019 Board Report
As of 10/10/19

Revenues

LCFF Sources

All Other Federal Revenue

Other State Revenue

Other Local Revenue

Other Financing Sou rces

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Certificated Personnel Salaries

Classified Personnel Salaries

Employee Benefits

Books and Supplies

Travel and Conferences

Dues and Memberships
Other lnsurance

All Other Utilities
Rents/Leases/Repairs

Other Operating Expenditures

CapitalOutlay
Other Outgo

Total Expenditures

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund

Beg. Fund Bal. (2018-19 Unaudited Actuals)

s (23s,24e) $ 17s4,7341 $ (203,1901 $ {e07,390}

$ 1,258,543

s

$

s
$

s

s

5

$

$

5

s

s

s

s

s

s

$

s

2019-2020
Budget

2019-2020
Year To Date

829,099

15,883

237,79O

1",955

1,084,717

665,693

277,t80
432,078
145,977

13,813

9,5L7

100,695

79,457

22,529

83,983

8,530

1,839,451

2018-2019

Budget

S 3,476,900

S 1,146,0s5

S 1,993,03s

5 zn,gqq
5 t40,473

S g,soo

$ 8g,gt9

$ 205,500

s 104,945

$ zss,¡so
S z¡o,ooo

S 668,6i.6

S 8,542,143

2018-20t9
Year To Date

lo,274
13,839

672,648
285,434
429,554

239,997

t-0,891

8,813

87,L45

90,242

27,795

124,196

198,669

7,990,647

254,867
1,95,102

69,840

8,500,450

S 7,549,255

5 zoo,ooz

5 467,224

S 3s,soo

$ 27,972

5 9,339,953

,8831,243

,995t,267

s

s

s

s

$

s

5

s

s

s

s

$

s

$

s

s

s

$

s

5

s

s

$

s

s

s

5

s

s

s

s

5

5

s

s

$

s

s

s

3,452,793
7,793,213
1,995,569

498,893

120,287

9,500

89,8L9

205,500

77,299

293,881

808,946

9,735,699 8575,3!2,

\¡

Projected End. Fund Bal $ 7,023,294



I



HUSD Superintendent Report

Boqrd Meeting on October 23,2019

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D.

With the changing colors of the trees around campus and the end of the first quarter last week the
Hamilton Unified School Dístrict and community continue to focus on helping our students achieve their
potential. From the amazing spirit at our Fall Sports to our strong interventíon programs, teachers, staff,
and parents alike are going above and beyond to ensure our children are getting the best education
possible! To ensure a clear vision and focus, on Friday, October LL, we had our Quarterly Cabinet
meeting that included all District and Site administration, Deans, TOSAs, and Site Administrative
Assistants. During our Cabínet Meeting, as a leadership team, we established five "Core Values" that
will help guide our decision making, communication, and future goals. Our identified Core Values are:

¡ Student Centered
. Genuine
o Committed
. "Teamtastic"-Team Centered and Enthusiastic
. "Pro-Pos"- Professional and Positive

Distríct Highlights for September & October:

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) data was recently
released for the district and school sites. Our admínistration team is examining the test data
and will be reporting out district and síte growth, as well as, símilar school comparative data
during the November/December board meeting.
A team from Hamilton Unified (Mrs. Sawyer, Mrs. Reyes, Mrs. Godinez, and Dr. Powell) traveled
to Sacramento to attend training for the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California
(ELPAC). This assessment is tak¡ng the place of the former assessment for our English Learners
(California English Language Development Test (CELDT). Our district is field test¡ng the
electronic version of the ELPAC now and will be giving in the assessment to all of our English

Learners in the Spring of 2020. This training was eye opening and will help us in our
understanding of what the requirements are for our English Learners.
Our first Bond Oversight Committee Meeting was held on September 30th. Meredith Johnson
from DWK (District Contracted Attorney Firm) lead our meeting. Our committee reviewed the
roles and responsibilities expected of members of the committee. We are still in search of two-
three members to fill out the committee.
Our school principals plus Kristen and myself attended the first on a series of meetíngs hosted
by Glenn County Office of Education focusíng on the LCAP and building a county-wide
Professional Learning Network. lt was a great first look at the new LCAP template, as well as a

good opportunity to learn from others throughout the county.

Upcoming Events:
. 10/24: Hamilton Unified Leadership Committee Meeting (HULC) @ 3:30 in the HHS Library
. t1,/4: DELAC/LCAP Meeting 6:00 @ HHS Library
. IL/LL: Veterans Day-No School
. 1L/13: HULC @ 3:30 in the HHS Library
. 71-/25-1,1/29: Thanksgíving Break-No School

a

a

9



10



Dear Friends,

The Boys & Girls Club is excited to announce our annual Champions for Kids
Reception. This evening event will be held on Thursday, November 14th from
6:00pm to 7:30pm at our very own Nettleton Gymnasium with appetizers by
Bacio Catering.

The Champions for Kids Reception is an event to honor those who give their
time, talents and treasures in order to help give local kids great futures at the
Boys & Girls Club. It is also the time when we officially present our 2019 Youth
of the Year.

The evening program is as follows:

. 6:00pm - Reception begins, Club Expos open to guests
o 6:30pm - Club kids performance
o 6:45pm - Club kids perform¿rnce
o 7:00pm - Closing speeches by CEO and Youth of the Year

]oin us as a sporìsor or attendee at this year's event to celebrate amazing
champions who make our region stronger and a better place for youth. This
evening will showcase all that has been accomplished in puttig kids first over
the last year. Please refer to the enclosed information regarding available
sponsorships and tickets.

Thank you in advance for your consideration. If you have any questions,
please don't hesitate to call me at (530) 899-0335.

With heartfelt gratitude,

BGCNV Main Office
601 Wall Street

Chico, CA 95928
Tel 530-899-0335
Fax 530-897-4614

www.bqcnv.orq

GOVERNING BOARD
Doug Arr¡ngton, Pres¡dent
Mark Banett, Past President
Heidi Coppin, Treasurer
Nicole Beech
Kelly Bennett
Matt Brown
Richard Carriere
Elliott Dutro
Bruce Hagerty
Troy Kidd
Armin Perham
John Rhe¡n
Al¡c¡a Rock
James Seegert
Jeremy Stone
Sam¡a Yaqub

LEGAL COUNSEL
Alicia Rock

( .Ð

CHICO LEADERSHIP BOARD
Kelly Bennett, Pres¡dent
Melan¡e Brubaker
Kamie Loeser
Rachel Mendez
Lauren O'Donnell
Diana Shepherd

PARADISE LEADERSHIP BOARD
Jennifer Arbuckle
Eden Davis
Lorra¡ne Head
Maurine Johnson
Jim Ladrini
Rick Mootz
Carol Peterson

OROVILLE LEADERSHIP BOARD
Trista Bosch
Jaqueline Deadmore
K¡m Felder
Atexis Giordano
Becky Holden
Angela Martin

HAMILTON CITY LEADERSHIP
BOARD
Richard Carriere, President
Glenn County Sherr¡ffls Dept.
Sherry Gruber
Merr¡lee Johnson
Gursewak Singh
Vicki Staples
Chuck Tracy

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Rashell M. Brobst

Tax l.D. # 68-0294846

Rashell Brobst, CEO
Boys & Girls Clubs of the North Valley

For 24 years, the Boys & Girls Clubs of the North Valley has been at the forefront of youth development in
after-school and teen services at I CIub sites throughout Butte & Glenn Counties. Our mission is ta inspire

and enable all youth to reach their full potential as productíve, responsible and caring citizens.

11



L2



North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management District

707 L Street, Eureka, eA 95501
(707) 443-3Oe3

www.ncuaqmd.orq

September 23,2019

Charles T racy, Superintendent
Hamilton Unified School District
P.O. Box 488
Hamilton City, CA 95951

RE: Agreement for Rural School Bus Pilot Project

The North Coast Unified Air Quality Management Distríct (NCUAQMD) is the Grant Administrator
for the Rural School Bus Pilot Project (RSBPP). The Hamilton Unified School District has been
approved to receive a total of $165,000.00 in RSBPP funding for the replacement of the following
bus(es):

Attached are the original agreements for the project(s). The original agreements must be signed
in "blue ink" by the authorized representative of your school district. Please sign and return two
copies to the District by mail. Once the NCUAQMD receives and executes the agreements, one
of the original copíes will be returned to you. At that time, you will have 30 days to place your
purchase order and submit a copy to the NCUAQMD. Please be sure to pay close attention to the
dates listed on Attachment A, Section 6. lf any of these dates cannot be met, please notify the
NCUAQMD prior to signing the agreement. Attachments B & C are to be completed and returned
after project completion, and have been provided to you now for review.

The NCUAQMD looks forward to working with you to ultimately provide school children with safe,
low-polluting transportation. lf you have any questions or require additional information, please
contact Erin Squíre at(707) 443-3093, extension 111.

Sincerely,

Brian Wilson
Air Pollution Control Officer

Grant # Grant $ Bus VIN
RSBPP 18-14 $165,000.00 2 1 HVBAZRMBLH699636

13



L4



RURAL SCHOOL BUS PITOT PROJECT
REPTACEMENT (HyBRtD OR TNTERNAL COMBUSTTON ENG|NEI

GRANTAGREEMENT
BETWEEN

THE NORTH COAST UN|F|ED AlR qUAL|TV MANAGEMENT DTSTR¡CT

AND
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROJECT NO. RSBPP 18.14

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Hamilton Unified School Distric! hereinafter
referred to as "Grantee," and the North Coast Unífied Air Quality Management District, hereinafter referred
to as the "Aír District," and shall be effective as of the date of the last party signing below ("Effective Date").

RECITALS

WHEREAT California Climate lnvestments are funded by the State proceeds from Cap-and-Trade auctions,
which provide an opportunity for the State to invest in projects that help achieve the State's climate goals and
provide benefits to disadvantaged communities; and

WHEREAS, the California Air Resources Board (CARB)created the RuralSchool Bus Pilot Project (RSBPP), and
has allocated funding from the California Climate lnvestments; and

WHEREAS, on January L4,2Ot6 the Governing Board of the Air District adopted Resolution 2OL6-2,authorizing
the Air Pollution Control Officer ("APCO") to enter into an agreement with the California Air Resources Board
("CARB")to implement said Grant Program on CARB's behalf; and

WHEREAS, on May LL, 2018, the Air District entered into Grant Agreemen! Number G17-RBUS-01, with the
CARB to administer the Rural School Bus Pilot Project ("RSBPp"); and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Grantee School District Resolution 78-79-705 Grantee has submitted a RSBPP Grant
Applicatíon dated June 26,2018, on file in the Air District office; and

WHEREAS, the APCO has evaluated Grantee's Grant Application, has determined that the Application complies
with the CARB RSBPP Guidelines and criteria and shall meet all RSBPP requirements for the full term of th¡s
Agreement, and on that basis has approved Grantee's project for funding in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, based on the representations made ín the Grant Application, which are incorporated hereín
and made a material part hereof, the partíes agree as follows:

1. GRANTAWARD

1,.1, Fundinq Award. Grantee is hereby awarded RSBPP grant funds for the project described in
Attachment A, Project Specific lnformation, attached hereto and incorporated herein, and hereafter
referred to as the "Project". The maxímum amount of grant funds forwhich Grantee is eligible is set
forth in Section 5 of Attachment A. ln consideration of said grant award, Grantee agrees to implement
the Project based on all terms of this Agreement, including but not límited to the purchase and use of
new equipment, and the performance of specific duties on or before key dates identified as the project

RSBPP 18.14
Hamilton Unified School D¡strict

North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management Distr¡ctPage 1 of L1

15



16



Milestones in Section 6 of Attachment A. Grantee may not begin any work on this project until full
execution of this Agreement.

t.2 Reimbursement Reauest. Disbursement o.f Funds. The Air D¡strict shall reimburse the school bus vendor
and/or Grantee for eligible Project costs and expenses using RSBPP Grant Funds, or other funding
mechanisms as determined appropriate by the APCO, consistent with the Project description and

implementation schedule contained in Attachment A. No reimbursement may be made untilthe new
bus has been delivered and a reimbursement request has been received. Grantee's reimbursement
request must inqlude: a completed copy of Attachment B, the Reimbursement Request Form; a copy

of the invoice from the bus vendor for the purchased bus; evidence of payment of the invoice and its

delivery (if applicable); the make, model and vehicle identification number (VlN) of the new bus;

photographs of the new bus depicting the manufactures lD tag, the engine serial number, the bus

identification number, and the license plate, if available; proof of California Highway Patrol (CHP)

certification signifying that the new school bus is safe to operate with children aboard; the CARB

Executive Order certification for the new bus engine; and, a completed copy of Attachment C, the
Dismantle Certification Form, with applicable photos.

Requests made for incremental renewable fuel costs must be accompanied by receipts, invoices, or
other documents providing actual fuel costs and fuel quantities. The Grantee may request funds for
incremental renewable fuel costs annually, with submissíon of annual reporting documentation as

required in Section 3.6 of this agreement. Requests for incremental renewable fuel costs must be

received no later than March L5,2027.lncremental renewable fuel costs accrued after this date are
the sole responsibility of the Grantee. For the purpose of this Project "lncremental Renewable Fuel

Costs" are defined as the difference in cost between the renewable fuel type and the comparable non-
renewable fuel type that would be purchased to perform the same function.

L.3 Proiect Cost: Project cost overruns are the sole responsibilíty of the Grantee unless expressly approved

in writing by the Air Dístrict. The Air District's fundíng obligation is limited to the 'RSBPP Funding" as

identified in Attachment A, Section 5.

1,.4 Grant Reduction: The APCO will reduce the Air District contr¡but¡on to the Project in the event that
the total Project cost is less than the amount listed in Attachment 4.

L.5 Use af Funds. Grantee must use all funds received under this Agreement in accordance with all
applicable provisions of law and implementation regulatíons.

2. AGREEMENTTERM AND PROJECT PHASES

2.1 Term, Term Components. This Agreement will commence as of the Effective Date (the date the last
party signs this Agreement) and remain in effect for three (3) years and one day after the date the new
school bus is put into active service. This time period shall be referred to as the Agreement "Tetm".
The Agreement shall remain in effect over the full length of the Term unless terminated earlier as

specified in Section 6 below. The Term has two phases, "Equípment Acquisition Phase" and the
"Equipment Utilization Phase" as follows:

(l) Equipment Acquisition Phose: This Phase will begin on the Effectíve Date of this Agreement, and
Iast until such time as the Air Dístrict confirms, in wríting, that the Equipment has become
operational. Project milestones within thís Phase include the execution of a purchase order for the
new bus, the delivery of the new bus, the placing into active service of the new bus, and the

RSBPP 18-14
Ham¡lton Unified School D¡str¡ct

North Coast Un¡fied

A¡r qual¡ty Management Distr¡ctPage 2 of 11

L7



18



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

dismantling / destruction of the old bus. The activities and deliverables listed as part of the
Equipment Acquisition Phase must be completed and/or satisfied on or before the dates specified

in Section 6 of Attachment A. The Grantee shall notiñ7 the Air District upon completion of the
Project Mílestones listed in Section 6 of Attachment A within the timeframe specified therein.

(21 Equípment Utilization Phose: This Phase will begin on the date the new bus is placed into active

service and conclude on the date three (3) years and one day thereafter. During this Phase, the
Grantee is required to retain ownership of the new bus, to maintain the new bus as recommended
bythe manufacturer, to maintain CHP certification forthe new bus, and to make reasonable efforts
to utilize the bus in the same manner and for the same purpose as the old bus it replaced was

used. The Grantee shall also collect information on the operation of the new bus and shall prepare

and submit reports at twelve month intervals.

Time is of the Essence. Equipment Deliverv Date. ln the performance of the duties established in this
Agreement, time is of the essence, as a delay in placing the new school bus into active service would
result in the continued use of the higher-polluting older bus. Such use would result in the unnecessary

exposure of school children to air toxics (diesel particulate matter) and in the addítional discharge of
greenhouse gases. Such emissions would have an adverse effect on air quality within the affected air
district and may cause or contribute to a violation of an ambient air quality standard. Delivery of the
new bus to the Grantee must occur on or before February L,2O2L ("Fínal Delivery Date"). Delivery of
the new school bus after the Final Delivery Date is a Grantee Default of this Agreement and subject to
the terms of Section 6.2 of this Agreement.

Grantee Purchase Order Contracts With School Bus Vendors. Grantee must include the Final Delívery

Date deadline in the purchase order agreement between Grantee and the school bus

distributor/vendor. Additionallç the Grantee must include language in the purchase order agreement
notifying the distributor/vendor that disbursement of grant funds may not take place for up to 90 days

after the delivery of the new bus. Language must also be included to notify the distributor/vendor that
the unit must be dismantled ín accordance with Sect¡on 3 prior to payment being issued.

3. NEW BUS OPERAT¡ON AND MAINTENANCE, OLD BUS REqUIREMENTS

Renewable Fuel Purchase Requirements. The Grantee must show proof of renewable fuel purchase in

sufficient quantity to propel the new bus for the mileage accumulated during the three year project

life. The following default fuel efficiency rates shall be used to calculate the quantity of fuel which must

be purchased for non-hybrid Project types: 1) Diesel - 6 miles per gallon, 2) Compressed Natural Gas

- LA7 pounds per mile or 23.22 scf per mile; 3) Propane - 3.9 miles per gallon. The Grantee may

request and the APCO may approve the use of alternate factors. Project types utilizing hybrid vehicles
must provide documentation from the dealer or manufacturer stating estimated fuel consumption.
This will be used to determine the quantity of fuel that must be purchased. The Air District will use

documentation provided with Annual Reporting, listed in Section 3.6 of this agreement for
verification. .

Maintenance Reauirements. Grantee shall operate and maintain the new bus according to the
ma nufacture/s warranty specifications.

3.3 Operotional Stotus. Grantee shall maintain records and information describing the operational status
of the new bus. The types of records and documents which can be used to satisfy this requirement
may include, but not be limited to records of routine maintenance performed and the corresponding

RSBPP 18-14
Hamilton Un¡fied School District

North Coast Unified
Page 3 of 11 Air qual¡ty Management D¡strict

19



20



3.4

3.5

3.6

o

a

purchase orders, repair est¡mates or work orders, and communicat¡on with the vehicle manufacturer.
Within ten (10) calendar days of a request from the Air District, the Grantee shall supply said records

and information in the manner specified by the Air District.

Disposal ' nismantle Requirements for Old Bus. The old bus that is replaced must be dismantled in
accordance wíth the CARB RSBPP Grant Agreement no later than 60 days after receipt of the new
replacement bus. For purposes of this Agreement "Dismantle" means to punch, crush, stamp,
hammer, shred, or otherwise render the old bus chassis permanently and irreversibly incapable of
functioning as originally intended. ln addition, it means the cutting or punching of a hole no less than
five (5) inches diameter in the engine block. Grantee shall providè the A¡r District with notice of the
date of dismantling, method and VIN of the dismantled bus.

Required ProoÍ oÍ Disposal / Dismantle. After disposing / dismantling the old bus in accordance with
Section 3.4 the Grantee shall prepare the documentation listed in this Section, and shall submit copies

to the Air District on or before the Project milestones listed in Section 6 of Attachment A. Records shall

be maintained at the physical location of the Grantee Contact listed in Section 10 of Attachment A.

Upon request, records shall be made accessible within a reasonable amount of time. The records
required to be maintained pursuant to this Agreement shall be retained by the Grantee throughout
the duration of the Equipment Acquisition and Utilization Phases, and for a period of three (3)

additional years beginning on the date the Equipment Utilization Phase ends.

A copy of the Department of Motor Vehicles Dismantlers Notice of Acquisition/Report of Vehícle to be

Dismantles (REG 42); or

A DMV Junk Slip and Certificate of Destructíon from the entity destroying the vehicle noting the vehicle
has been junked and is non-revivable; and

a A completed copy of Attachment C, the Dismantle Certification Form, and applicable photographic
evidence. Using the form, the Grantee must attest that the vehicle and engine were dismantled
in accordance with the definitíon of "Dismantle" set forth in Section 3.4, above. ln addition the
following photographs must be submitted:

L) The Vehicle ldentification Number
2) The engine serial number
3) Photographic representation of the methods used to dismantle both the engine and non-

engíne portion of the bus

Recordkeepinq and Annual Reportina. The Grantee shall collect data on the operation of the new bus.
The data points to be collected are: mileage, maintenance, CHP certification status, and any other
pertinent information the Air District may request to verify the performance of the duties specified in
thisAgreement. Mileageinformationshallberecorded,ataminimum,twiceperyearonthefollowing
dates: L) The anniversary date the new bus was placed into active service; and 2) December 3L.
Maintenance and certification information shall be recorded and logged upon occurrence. The
Grantee shall prepare and submit a report of the information collected throughout the reporting
period for the duration of the Equipment Utilization Phase as defined in Section 2.1(2) and in

accordance with the requirements and schedule in Section 6 of Attachment A.

RSBPP 18-14
Hamilton Un¡f¡ed school D¡strict

North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management Distr¡ctPage 4 of 11

2L



22



4. ON-SITE INSPECTIONS, RECORDS RETENT¡ON, AND AUDITS

4.t New & Old Vehicle. The Grantee shall allow the Air Dístrict, CARB employees, and their designated
representatives to physically inspect both the new bus and the old bus, if any, for the purpose of
verifying Grantee's performance of the duties under this Agreement. Access to conduct an inspection
shall be granted, after reasonable notice, during normal business hours throughout the duration of the
Equipment Acquisition and Utilization Phases, and for a period of three (3) years beginning on the date
the Equípment Utilízation Phases ends.

4.2 Records Retention Grantee shall retain the following records: L) Mileage logs; 2) Purchase orders,
invoices, and work orders required for reimbursement of equipment, infrastructure, and fuel costs
pursuant to Section 4 of Attachment A; and 3) Annual reports required pursuant to Section 3.4. Records

shall be maínta¡ned at the physical location of the Grantee Contact listed in Section 10 of
Attachment A. Upon request, records shall be made accessible within a reasonable amount of time.
The records required to be maintained pursuant to this Agreement shall be retained by the Grantee

throughout the duration of the Equipment Acquisition and Utilization Phases, and for a period of three
(3) additionalyears beginning on the date the Equipment Utilization Phase ends.

4.3 Records lnspection. Audits. Grantee shall allow the Air District, the CARB, the California Department of
General Services, the California Department of Finance {DoF), the Bureau of State audits, or any of
their designated representatives to inspect, audif and make copies of any Project records or
supporting documentation related to the performance of this Agreement. Grantee shall allow access

to records during normal business hours with reasonable notice. Additionally, Grantee shall allow
interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records.

Survival of Termination. The requirements in this Section 4 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

5. CHANGE IN OPERATIONAL STATUS

Notification of Chanae in Operatíonal Status. Grantee shall provide written notification to the Air
District in the event of a Change in Operational Status for the Project Equipment. Notice shall be made
within thirty (30) calendar days of its occurrence. For purposes of this Section, a "Change in
Operational Status" shall mean: 1) the wrecking, scrapping or rendering of the Project Equipment such

that it is unfit for service; 2) the selling or transferring of ownership of the Project Equipment to
another entity; or, 3) the removal of the Project Equipment from active service for a period or periods
longer than 30 consecutive calendar days for reasons beyond the control of the Grantee including but
not limited to mechanícal defect, accident, or Force Majeure pursuant to Section 7.8 of this Agreement.

5.2 Chanae in Operational Status. ln the event of a Change in Operatíonal Status that the APCO determines
is permanent, the Grantee shall repay a prorated amount of the totalgrant funds received under this
Agreement. Payment in full of the prorated amount shall be received by the Air District within sixty
(60) days ofthe date the Change in Operational Status event occurred. The amount ofthe repayment
shall be determined using the followíng schedule which ís prorated and set on a slíding scale based
upon the tim¡ng of the change in status event relative to the Equipment Utilization Phase start date.

a lf prior to the anniversary date of the first year of operation by Grantee: ninety percent (90%)
proration of the Total Grant Award; and

4.4

5.L

RSBPP L8-r.4
Ham¡lton Unified School D¡strict

North Coast Un¡f¡ed

A¡r Quat¡ty Management DistrictPage 5 of lL

23



24



lf after the first year of operation, but prior to the anniversary of the second year of operation
by Grantee: síxty percent (60%) prorat¡on of the Total Grant Award; and

lf after the second year of operation, but prior to the anniversary date of the third year of
operatíon by Grantee: thirty percent (30%) of the Total Grant Award.

ln the event of the sale or transfer of ownership of the Project Equipment, the APCO may, in his

discretion, waive the repayment requirements of this Section if the subsequent owner or operator of
the new vehicle signs a successor contract with the Air District guaranteeing that the new vehicle will
continue to be used within the Air District in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, and will
provide equal or greater emission reductions than would have been achieved in this initial Agreement.

6. TERMINATION

6,L Prior to Disbursement of Funds. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time prior to transfer
of grant funds by giving written notice of termination to the other party, in accordance with this
Section. Notice of termination under this paragraph shall be given at least th¡rty (30) days before the
effective date of such termination, and said notice shall specify the effective date thereof.
Notwithstanding the above, failure by either Party to execute this Agreement within sixty (60) days of
the signature by the other Party will result in cancellation of the Agreement without notice.

6.2 Reimbursement Request. Grantee Default The Air District may cancel or withhold payment of any
grant fund disbursement if the APCO determines that Grantee has failed to comply with, or meet any
oblígationofthísAgreement. TheAPCOshallgivel0-daynoticeof his/herintenttocancelorwíthhold
such payment and the basis therefore. Grantee will be given a reasonable opportunity to cure the
non-compliance prior to the Air District canceling or withholding such payment. lf Grantee is found
to be in default of operation and maintenance requírements as defined in Section 3 above, a prorated
repayment of the grant award will be required as per Section 5.2.

Grantee lneliaibilitv. The Grantee shall be required to repay/return awarded grant funds should the
project be deemed ineligible.

7. MISCELLANEOUS

lndemnification Each party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other pafty, its officers,
employees, agents, and successors-in-interest agaínst any and all claims, suits or actíons resulting
solely from the performance by the indemnifying party of its duties under this Agreement, excepting
only such claims, suits or actions that are caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the
indemnifying party.

Notices and Contoct. All notices required by thís Agreement shall be given in writing and will be

effective when served by personal delivery, upon confirmat¡on of receipt by the recipient when sent
by e-mail or facsimile transmission, or four (4) calendar days after being deposited, postage prepaid,
registered or certified, in the United States mail, to the relevant address(es) or facsimile number as set
forth in Attachment A. Other communications as may be required from time to time shall be sent to
the Contact person identified in Attachment A. Either party may change Notice and Contact
information at any time by written notice. All communication to the Air District shall reference the
Project Number.

a

a

6.3

7.1,

7.2

RSBPP 18-14
Hamilton Un¡f¡ed school District

North Coast Unified
A¡r qual¡ty Management Distr¡ctPage 6 of 11

25



26



7.3 Entire Aqreement. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter described in this Agreement, and no representatíon, warranties, inducements or oral
agreements have been made by any of the parties except as expressly set forth herein, or in other
contempora neous wr¡tten agreements.

7.4 Amendment This Agreement may not be changed or modified except in writing and signed by the
parties hereto.

7.5 lndependent Contractor. None of the Grantee's agents, subcontractors or employees shall be

construed as agents or employees of the A¡r District.

Assianment This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred, hypothecated, subcontracted or
pledged by Grantee without the express prior written consent of the Air District. Assignment of this
Agreement must be a condition of transfer of the vehicle identified in Attachment A to any successor
organization to the Grantee.

7.6

7.7 Severøbilitv. Should any part of th¡s Agreement be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or beyond the
authority of either party to enter into or carry out, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of this Agreement which shall continue in full force and effect; provided that, the remainder
of this Agreement can, absent the invalid portion(s), reasonably be interpreted to give effect to the
intentions of the parties.

7.8 Force Maieure. Neither the Air District nor Grantee shall be liable or deemed to be in default for any
delay or failure in performance under this Agreement or interruption of services, directly or indirectly,
from the acts of God, civil or military authoritç acts of public enemy, war, strikes, labor disputes,
shortages of suitable parts, materials, labor or transportation, or any similar cause beyond the
reasonable control of the Air District or Grantee (each, a "Force Majeure Event"). The party justly
claiming the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event must notify the other party of the Force Majeure
Event within ten (L0) calendar days of discovery of the Force Majeure Event, and will have thirty (30)
days following such Force Majeure Event to resume its performance under this Agreement; provided,
however, that the other party's corresponding obligations {including the corresponding obligation, if
any, to pay monies when otherwise due) will be símilarly suspended during such time period, and
provided further, that if the Grantee's Force Majeure Event continues for more than thirty (30) days,
the Air District may termínate this Agreement immediately and without any liabílity to any party, other
than for obligations incurred up to the date the Force Majeure Event commenced.

7.9 Riqht to Cloim Emissíon Reductions. The CARB retains the exclusive right to claim any emission
reduction credits under state or federal law that might result from emissíons reduced by the Project
implemented pursuant to this Agreement.

7.10 CEQA Review. The Grantee must fulfill all requirements of the California Environmental Quality Rct
(CEaA) with regard to the Project. This includes ensuring that all necessary permits and environmental
documents are prepared and that clearances are obtained from the appropriate agencÍes pr¡or to
construction in compliance with the Act, state law, and local ordinance.

7.tt Grant Publ¡cittl. The Grantee must acknowledge the California Climate lnvestments program as a
funding source from CARB's Low Carbon Transportation program whenever projects funded, in whole
or ín part by this Agreement, are publicized in any news media, websites, brochures, publications,
audiovisuals, or other types of promotional material. The acknowledgement must read as follows: 'This
publication (or project) was supported by the "California Climate lnvestments" (CCl) program.
Guidelines for the usage of the CCI logo can be found at www.arb.ca.gov/ccifundingguidelines.'

RSBPP 18-14
Ham¡lton Unified School District

North Coast Unified
Air quality Management D¡strictPage 7 of 11

27



28



7.L2 Attorney Fees. ln the event the Air District is required to enforce any terms or cond¡t¡ons of this
Agreement by court action, it shall be entitled to an award of attorney's fees and costs.

Third Partv Beneficíarv Riqhts. The CARB is an intended third party beneficiary of this Agreement and
reserves the right to audit and enforce the terms of this Agreement at any time throughout the
duration of the Equipment Acquisit¡on and Utilization Phases, and for a period of three (3) years

beginning on the date the Equipment Utilization Phases ends.

7.L3

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed on their behalf by

their authorized representatives effective as of the date of the last party signing below.

HAMILTON UNIFIED

SCHOOL DISTRICT

NORTH COAST UNIFIED AIR QUALITY
MANAGEMENT AIR DISTRICT

Brian Wilson, Air Pollution ControlOfficer

Date:

-Gharle+{raef 
Su pe ri nte n de nt

'lerenny ?ou:¿[\, Ed .Þ
Date:

RSBPP 18-L4
Ham¡lton Unif¡ed School Distr¡ct

North Coast Un¡f¡ed

A¡r QualiW Management DistrictPage 8 of 11

29



30



ATTACHMENT A - PROJECT SPECIFIC INFORMATION

Except as otherwise provided, all capitalized terms shall have the mean¡ngs set forth in the Agreement.

1. Grantee: Hamílton Unifíed School D¡strict

2. Project Number: RSBPP L8-14

3. D¡str¡ct Approval Date: August2L,2079

4. Scope of Work - Project Description: The purchase of one (L) eligible school bus ("New Bus") to replace

an existing in-use school bus ("Old Bus"). Project Equipment includes the Old Bus, New Bus, and purchase of
renewable fuel (diesel, compressed natural gas, or propane) necessary for the operation of the New Bus. The

New Bus must meet or exceed the emission specifications listed in the table below. During the Equipment
Acquisition Phase,the Grantee shall purchase the New Bus and a sufficient quantity of renewable fuel to propel

the New Bus for the length of the agreement term. The Old Bus shall be scrapped, wrecked, and dismantled in

accordance with Section 3 of the Agreement. During the Equipment Utilizotion Phose, and after securing the
proper CHP certifications, the Grantee shall place the New Bus into active service and make all reasonable

efforts to use it in the same manner as the Old Bus it replaced. The Grantee shall collect and record information
on the operat¡on of the Project Equipment for annual report¡ng. The report shall be prepared using a form
provided by the Air District however, the Grantee may submit additional information or materials as deemed

appropriate. Each reporting period shall be twelve (12) months in length and shall begin on December 31 of
the year the New Bus is placed into active service. There are four reporting events, which will capture calendar
year usage and usage based on L2, 24, and 36 months of operation.

Proiect Equipment

An eligible replacement school bus ("New Bus") is defined as a new {current model year) hybrid or internal
combustion engíne school bus using renewable fuel (diesel, compressed naturalgas, propaneland whose
engine meets or exceeds the following emission standards:

5. Maximum Amount of Grant Funds Awarded: $165,000.00
According to program guidelines, the reimbursement of eligible project costs for the project described in

Section 4 above shall not exceed 5L65,000.00 in Rural School Bus Pilot Project grant awards. The maximum
amount of grant funds awarded for this project is 5165,000.00. The actual amount paid under this agreement
is further limited to eligible project costs. Eligible project costs include: The cost of the New Bus (vehicle price,
taxes, and environmental disposal fees), and the incremental cost of the renewable fuel. Ruralschool Bus Pilot
Project grant awards may not exceed the Maximum Funding Levels allowed under the grant and the total

RSBPP 18.14
Hamilton Un¡f¡ed School Distr¡ct

North Coast Un¡fied

ln-Use Bus ("Old Bus")

License Plate # Vehicle ldentification Number Bus make and model Modelyear

826L636 1HVBAZRM8LH699636 Ward 3700 1990

Eligible replacement school bus Emission Requirements
NOx (s/bhp-hr) PM (e/bhp-hr)

Dieselschool bus .20 0.01_

Page 9 of 11 Air Quality Management D¡stríct

31



32



project costs for each category. Rural School Bus Pilot Project grant awards combined with other funding
sources may not exceed eligible project costs.

*Rural School Bus Pilot Project funded vehicle(s) cannot be co-funded with the Hybrid and Zero-Emission
Truck and Bus Voucher lncentive Project (HVIP) program.

6. Project Schedule (M¡lestones): The following is a list of the deliverables (performance duties), under the
Agreement which must be completed on or before the dates indicated below.

7. Reimbursement Schedule Limits: The following represent the maximum allowable reimbursement
possible for each of the milestones listed. ln order to receive payment, the Grantee must submit
documentation as required pursuant to Section 1 of the Agreement.

RSBPP Funding (Bus)
RSBPP Funding (incremental

fuel costs)
Additional Funding* Total

s165,000.00 s- s $t65,ooo.oo

Milestone Due Date(s) / Timetable
1-) lssue Purchase Order (PO)for New Bus Complete within 30 days of contract execution

2) Submit copy of PO to the Air District Within 10 days of execution

3) Deliver New Bus to Grantee, AND
place New Bus into active service

On or before February t,2OZl,

4) Notify Air District of New Bus Delivery and
Operation

Within L0 days of delivery

5) Dismantle / Scrap Old Bus Within 60 days of delivery of the New Bus to the
Grantee (Milestone #3).

Final Date to Submit Reimbursement Request is March L5,2O2I

6) First Annual Report
Record mileage on December 31r of the year the
New Bus is placed into active service. Reports will be
due the following January 3ls

7) Second Annual Report
Record mileage on December 3l-'t and L2 months
after the New Bus was first placed into service.
Reports will be due the following January 31't

8)Third Annual Report
Record mileage on December 3L't and24 months
after the new bus was first placed into service.
Reports will be due the following January 31st

9) Fourth Annual Report
Record mileage on December 3L't and 36 months
after the New Bus was first placed into service.
Reports will be due the following January 3l't

Milestone Maximum Payment
#5 - New Bus in Service & Old Bus Dismantled

Si.65,ooo.oo

#6 - 8 - lncremental Cost of Renewable Fuel
(The Grantee may claim tncrementol Renewable Fuel
costs through March 75, 202L. Fuel cost accrued ofter
this date is the sole responsibility of the Grantee.)

RSBPP 18-14
Ham¡lton Unif¡ed School D¡stríct

North Coast Unified
A¡r Quality Management D¡strictPage L0 of 11

33



34



cnares+eaey fe-rfen'ry'ÞUOEtl, EÉi b,
Superintendent
Hamilton Unified School District
P.O. Box 488
Hamilton City, CA 95951
530-826-3261 ext. ææ (ûffi

9. Contacts: Contact persons for day-to-day act¡v¡ties of the Project are

Grantee:
Ghffiy .leinenr,y?:urt \, Ei .Þ .

8. Notices: Any required written notice shall be addressed to

Grantee:

Superintendent
Hamilton Unified School D¡str¡ct
P.O. Box 488
Hamilton City, CA 9595L
530-826-3261 ext. 60O+- tffi

jpo*Ëfrry@ 
h usd sc ho o I s'o rg

Vehicle Garase:
620 Canal Street
Hamilton City, CA 95951

District:
Brian Wilson
Air Pollutíon Control Officer
North Coast Unified AQMD
707 L Street
Eureka, CA 95501
(7O7) 443-3Oe3

District:
Erin Squire
Air Quality Specialist
North Coast Unified AQMD
707 L Street
Eureka, CA 95501
(707l.443-3Os3
esquire@ncuaqmd.org

Location of Records:
620 Canal Street
Hamilton City, CA 9595L

10. Vehicle Garage & Location of Records: The physical address where the new bus and old bus are housed
(vehicle yard) and the location where operational records are kept.

RSBPP 18-14
Hamilton Unified School District

North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management DistrictPage 11 of 11

3s



36



RURAL SCHOOL BUS PILOT PROJECT
REPTACEMENT (hrYBRrD OR TNTERNAL COMBUSTTON ENG¡NE)

GRANTAGREEMENT
BETWEEN

THE NORTH COAST UNIFIED AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

AND
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROJECT NO. RSBPP 18.14

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Hamilton Unified School District, hereinafter
referred to as "Grantee," and the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District, hereinafter referred
to as the "Air District" and shall be effective as of the date of the last party signing below ("Effective Date").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, California Clímate lnvestments are funded by the State proceeds from Cap-and-Trade auctions,
which provide an opportunity for the State to ínvest in projects that help achieve the State's climate goals and
provide benefits to disadvantaged communities; and

WHEREAS, the California Air Resources Board (CARB) created the Rural School Bus Pilot Project (RSBPP), and
has allocated funding from the California Climate lnvestments; and

WHEREAS, on January 14,2OL6 the Governing Board of the Air District adopted Resolution 2016-2, authorizing
the Air Pollution Control Officer ("APCO")to enter into an agreement with the California Air Resources Board
('CARB")to implement said Grant Program on CARB's behalf; and

WHEREAS, on May LL, 2AI8, the Air District entered into Grant Agreement, Number GL7-RBUS-01, with the
CARB to administer the Rural School Bus Pilot Project ("RSBPP"); and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Grantee School District Resolution 78-79-705 Grantee has submitted a RSBPP Grant
Application dated June 26,2OL8, on file in the Air Distr¡ct office; and

WHEREAS, the APCO has evaluated Grantee's Grant Application, has determined that the Application complies
with the CARB RSBPP Guidelines and criteria and shall meet all RSBPP requirements for the full term of this
Agreement, and on that basis has approved Grantee's project for funding in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

NOWTHEREFORE, based on the representations made in the Grant Applicatíon, which are incorporated herein
and made a material part hereof, the parties agree as follows:

L. GRI\NTAWARD

LT Fundinq Award. Grantee is hereby awarded RSBPP grant funds for the project described in
Attachment A, Project Specific lnformation, attached hereto and incorporated herein, and hereafter
referred to as the "Project". The maximum amount of grant funds for which Grantee is eligible ís set
forth in Section 5 of Attachment A. ln consideration of said grant award, Grantee agrees to implement
the Project based on allterms of th¡s Agreement, including but not limited to the purchase and use of
new equipment, and the pertormance of specific duties on or before key dates identified as the Project

RSBPP 18.14 North Coast Un¡f¡ed
A¡r Qual¡ty Management DistrictHam¡lton Unified School D¡strict Page L of L1 37



38



Milestones in Section 6 of Attachment A. Grantee may not begin any work on this project untíl full
execution of this Agreement.

7.2 Reimbursement Reauest. Disbursement of Funds. The Air D¡strict shall reimburse the school bus vendor
and/or Grantee for eligible Project costs and expenses using RSBPP Grant Funds, or other funding
mechanisms as determined appropriate by the APCO, consistent with the Project description and
implementation schedule contained in Attachment A. No reimbursement may be made until the new
bus has been delivered and a reimbursement request has been received. Grantee's reimbursement
request must include: a completed copy of Attachment B, the Reimbursement Request Form; a copy
of the invoice from the bus vendor for the purchased bus; evidence of payment of the invoice and its
delivery (if applicable); the make, model and vehicle identification number (VlN) of the new bus;
photographs of the new bus depicting the manufactures lD tag, the engine serial number, the bus
identification number, and the license plate, if available; proof of California Highway Patrol (CHP)

certification signifying that the new school bus is safe to operate with children aboard; the CARB

Executive Order certificatíon for the new bus engine; and, a completed copy of Attachment C, the
Dismantle Certification Form, with applicable photos.

Requests made for incremental renewable fuel costs must be accompanied by receipts, invoices, or
other documents providing actual fue.l costs and fuel quantities. The Grantee may request funds for
incremental renewable fuel costs annually, with submission of annual reporting documentation as

required in Section 3.6 of this agreement. Requests for íncremental renewable fuel costs must be

receíved no later than March L5,202L.lncremental renewable fuel costs accrued after this date are
the sole responsibility of the Grantee. For the purpose of this Project, "lncremental Renewable Fuel

Costs" are defined as the difference in cost between the renewable fuel type and the comparable non-
renewable fuel type that would be purchased to perform the same function.

1.3 Proiect Cost: Project cost overruns are the sole responsibility of the Grantee unless expressly approved
in writing by the Air District. The Air District's funding obligation is limited to the "RSBPP Funding" as

identified in Attachment A, Section 5.

L.4 Grant Reduction: The APCO will reduce the Air District contribution to the Project in the event that
the total Project cost is less than the amount listed in Attachment A.

Use of Funds. Grantee must use all funds received under this Agreement in accordance with all
applicable provísions of law and implementation regulations.

2. AGREEMENT TERM AND PROJECT PHASES

Term, Term Components. Thís Agreement w¡ll commence as of the Effective Date (the date the last
party signs this Agreement) and remaín in effect for three (3) years and one day after the date the new
school bus is put into active service. This time period shall be referred to as the Agreement "Term".
The Agreement shall remain in effect over the full length of the Term unless terminated earlíer as

specified in Section 6 below. The Term has two phases, "Equipment Acquisítion Phase" and the
"Equipment Utilization Phase" as follows:

(L) Equipment Acquisition Phase: This Phase will begin on the Effective Date of this Agreement, and
last until such time as the Air District confirms, in writing, that the Equipment has become
operational. Project milestones within this Phase include the executíon of a purchase order for the
new bus, the delivery of the new bus, the placing into active service of the new bus, and the

1.5

2.L

RSBPP L8-14
Hamilton Unified School District

North Coast Unified
A¡r Quality Management Distr¡ctPage 2 of 11 39



40



2.2

2.3

3.1

dismantling / destruction of the old bus. The activities and deliverables listed as part of the
Equipment Acquisition Phase must be completed and/or satisfied on or before the dates specified

in Section 6 of Attachment A. The Grantee shall notify the Air District upon completion of the
Project Milestones listed in Section 6 of Attachment A within the timeframe specified therein.

(2) Equipment lJtilization Phase: This Phase will begin on the date the new bus is placed into active

service and conclude on the date three (3) years and one day thereafter. During this Phase, the
Grantee is required to reta¡n ownership of the new bus, to maintain the new bus as recommended

by the manufacturer, to maintain CHP certification for the new bus, and to make reasonable efforts
to utilize the bus in the same manner and for the same purpose as the old bus it replaced was

used. The Grantee shallalso collect information on the operation of the new bus and shall prepare

and subniit reports at twelve month intervals.

Time ís of the Essence. Equipment Deliverv Dote. ln the performance of the duties established in this
Agreement, time is of the essence, as a delay in placing the new school bus into active service would
result in the continued use of the higher-polluting older bus. Such use would result in the unnecessary

exposure of school children to air tox¡cs (diesel particulate matter) and in the additional discharge of
greenhouse gases. Such emissions would have an adverse effect on air quality within the affected air
distríct and may cause or contribute to a violation of an ambient air quality standard. Delivery of the
new bus to the Grantee must occur on or before February 1,,2021- ("Final Delivery Date"). Delivery of
the new school bus after the Final Delívery Ðate is a Grantee Default of this Agreement and subject to
the terms of Section 6.2 of this Agreement.

Grontee Purchase Order Controcts With Schoo! Bus Vendors. Grantee must include the Final Delivery
Date deadline in the purchase order agreement between Grantee and the school bus

distributor/vendor. Additionally, the Grantee must include language in the purchase order agreement
notifying the dístributor/vendor that disbursement of grant funds may not take place for up to 90 days

after the delivery of the new bus. Language must also be included to notify the distributor/vendor that
the unit must be dismantled in accordance with Section 3 prior to payment being issued.

3. NEW BUS OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE, OtD BUS REQUIREMENTS

Renewable Fuel Purchase Requirements. The Grantee must show proof of renewable fuel purchase in

sufficient quantity to propel the new bus for the mileage accumulated during the three year project
life. The following default fuel effíciency rates shall be used to calculate the quantity of fuel which must
be purchased for non-hybrid Project types: 1) Diesel - 6 miles per gallon, 2) Compressed Natural Gas

- 3,.07 pounds per mile or 23.22 scf per mile; 3) Propane - 3.9 miles per gallon. The Grantee may

request and the APCO may approve the use of alternate factors. Project types utilizing hybrid vehicles

must provide documentation from the dealer or manufacturer stating estimated fuel consumption.
This will be used to determine the quantíty of fuel that must be purchased. The Air Dístrict will use

documentation provided with Annual Reporting, listed in Sectlon 3.6 of this agreement, for
verification. .

Maintenance Reauirements. Grantee shall operate and maintain the new bus according to the
ma nufacture/s warra nty specifications.

3.3 Operational Status. Grantee shall maintain records and information describing the operational status
of the new bus. The types of records and documents whích can be used to satisfy this requirement
may include, but not be limíted to records of routine maintenance performed and the corresponding

3.2

RSBPP r.8-14
Ham¡lton Un¡fied School Distr¡ct

North Coast Unified
Page 3 of 11 Air Quality Management Distr¡ct 4l



42



3.4

3.5

purchase orders, repair est¡mates or work orders, and communícat¡on with the vehicle manufacturer.
Within ten (10) calendar days of a request from the Air District, the Grantee shall supply said records

and information in the manner specified by the Air District.

Disposal ' Dismantle Requirements for OId Bus. The old bus that is replaced must be dismantled in

accordance with the CARB RSBPP Grant Agreement no later than 60 days after receipt of the new

replacement bus. For purposes of this Agreement "Dismantle" means to punch, crush, stamp,

hammer, shred, or otherwise render the old bus chassis permanently and irreversibly incapable of
functioning as originally intended. ln addition, it means the cutting or punching of a hole no less than
five (5) inches diameter in the engine block. Grantee shall provide the Air Distr¡ct with notice of the
date of dismantling, method and VIN of the dismantled bus.

Required Proof of Disposol 
' ñísmantle. After disposing / dismantling the old bus in accordance with

Section 3.4, the Grantee shall prepare the documentation listed in this Section, and shall submit copies

to the Air District on or before the Project milestones listed in Section 6 of Attachment A. Records shall

be maintained at the physical location of the Grantee Contact listed in Section 10 of Attachment A.

Upon request, records shall be made accessible within a reasonable amount of time. The records

required to be maintained pursuant to this Agreement shall be retained by the Grantee throughout
the duratíon of the Equipment Acquisition and Utilization Phases, and for a period of three (3)

additional years beginning on the date the Equipment Utilization Phase ends.

A copy of the Department of Motor Vehicles Dismantlers Notice of Acquisition/Report of Vehicle to be

Dismantles (REG 42); or

ADMVJunkSlipandCertificateof Destructionfromtheentítydestroying thevehiclenotingthevehicle
has been junked and is non-revivable; and

I A completed copy of Attachment C, the Dísmantle Certification Form, and applicable photographic
evidence. Using the form, the Grantee must attest that the vehicle and engine were dismantled
in accordance with the definítion of "Dismantle" set forth in Section 3.4, above. ln addition the
following photographs must be submitted:

1) The Vehicle ldentifícation Number
2) The engine serial number
3) Photographic representation of the methods used to dismantle both the engine and non-

engine portion of the bus

Recordkeepina and Annuol Reportina. The Grantee shallcollect data on the operation of the new bus.

The data points to be collected are: mileage, maintenance, CHP cert¡ficat¡on status, and any other
pertinent information the Air Distríct may request to verify the performance of the dutíes specified in

this Agreement. Mileage information shall be recorded, at a minimum, twice per year on the following
dates: L) The anniversary date the new bus was placed into active service; and 2) December 3L.

Maintenance and certification information shall be recorded and logged upon occurrence. The

Grantee shall prepare and submit a report of the information collected throughout the reporting
period for the duration of the Equipment Utilization Phase as defined in Section 2.1,(21 and in
accordance with the requirements and schedule in Section 6 of Attachment A.

a

a

3.6

RSBPP 18-14
Ham¡lton Un¡fied School Distr¡ct

North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management D¡strictPage 4 of LL 43



44



4" ON-S|TE |NSPECT|OÍVS, RECORDS RETENTTON, AND AUDTTS

4.L New & Old Vehicle. The Grantee shall allow the Aír Dístrict, CARB employees, and their designated
representatives to physically inspect both the new bus and the old bus, if any, for the purpose of
veriñ7ing Grantee's performance of the duties under this Agreement. Access to conduct an inspection
shall be granted, after reasonable notice, during normal business hours throughout the duration of the
Equipment Acquisition and Utilízat¡on Phases, and for a period of three (3) years beginning on the date
the Equipment Utilization Phases ends.

4.2 Records Retention Grantee shall retain the following records: L) Mileage logs; 2) Purchase orders,
invoices, and work orders required for reimbursement of equipment, infrastructure, and fuel costs
pursuant to Section 4 of Attachment A; and 3) Annual reports required pursuant to Section 3.4. Records

shall be maintained at the physical location of the Grantee Contact listed in Section L0 of
Attachment A. Upon request, records shall be made accessible within a reasonable amount of time.
The records required to be maintained pursuant to this Agreement shall be retained by the Grantee
throughout the duratíon of the Equipment Acquisition and Utilization Phases, and for a period of three
(3) additional years beginning on the date the Equipment Utilization Phase ends.

4.3 Records lnspection, Audits. Grantee shall allow the Air District, the CARB, the California Department of
General Services, the California Department of Finance (DoF), the Bureau of State audits, or any of
their designated representatives to inspect, audít, and make copies of any Project records or
supporting documentation related to the performance of this Agreement. Grantee shall allow access

to records during normal business hours with reasonable notice. Additionally, Grantee shall allow
interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records.

Survival of Termination. The requirements in this Section 4 shall survive the termination of th¡s
Agreement.

5. CHANGE IN OPERATIONAL STATUS

Notificotion of Chonqe in Operational Status. Grantee shall provide written notification to the Air
District in the event of a Change in Operational Status for the Project Equipment. Notice shall be made
within thirty (30) calendar days of its occurrence. For purposes of this Section, a "Change in
Operational Status" shall mean: L) the wrecking, scrapping or rendering of the Project Equipment such
that ít is unfit for service; 2) the selling or transferring of ownership of the Project Equipment to
another ent¡ty; or, 3) the removal of the Project Equipment from active service for a period or periods
longer than 30 consecutive calendar days for reasons beyond the control of the Grantee including but
not lim ited to mechanical defect, accident, or Force Majeure pursuant to Section 7.8 of this Agreement.

Chonge in Operational Status. ln the event of a Change in OperationalStatus thatthe APCO determines
is permanent, the Grantee shall repay a prorated amount of the total grant funds received under this
Agreement. Payment in full of the prorated amount shall be receíved by the Air District within sixty
(60) days of the date the Change in Operational Status event occurred. The amount of the repayment
shall be determined using the following schedule which is prorated and set on a sliding scale based
upon the timing of the change in status event relative to the Equipment Utilization Phase start date.

a lf prior to the anniversary date of the first year of operation by Grantee: ninety percent (90%)

proration of the Total Grant Award; and

4.4

5.1

5.2

RSBPP L8-14
Hamilton Un¡f¡ed School District

North Coast Un¡f¡ed
Air Quality Management Distr¡ctPage 5 of 11 45



46



lf after the fírst year of operation, but prior to the anniversary of the second year of operation
by Grantee: sixty percent (60%) proration of the Total Grant Award; and

lf after the second year of operation, but prior to the anniversary date of the third year of
operation by Grantee: thirty percent (30%) of the Total Grant Award.

ln the event of the sale or transfer of ownership of the Project Equipment, the APCO may, in his

discretion, waive the repayment requirements of this Section if the subsequent owner or operator of
the new vehicle signs a successor contract with the Air District guaranteeing that the new vehicle will
continue to be used within the Air District in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, and will
provide equal or greater emission reductions than would have been achieved in this initialAgreement.

6. TERMINATION

6.1 Prior to Disbursement of Funds. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time prior to transfer
of grant funds by giving written not¡ce of termination to the other party, in accordance with this
Section. Notice of termination under this paragraph shall be given at least thirty (30) days before the
effective date of such termination, and said notice shall specifiT the effective date thereof.
Notwithstanding the above, failure by either Party to execute this Agreement with¡n sixty (60) days of
the signature by the other Party will result in cancellation of the Agreement without notice.

6.2 Reimbursement Request. Grontee Default The Air District may cancel or withhold payment of any
grant fund disbursement if the APCO determines that Grantee has failed to comply with, or meet any
obligation of this Agreement. The APCO shall give 10-day notice of his/her intent to cancel or withhold
such payment and the basis therefore. Grantee will be given a reasonable opportunity to cure the
non-compliance prior to the Air District canceling or withholding such payment. lf Grantee is found
to be in default of operation and ma¡ntenance requirements as defined in Section 3 above, a prorated
repayment of the grant award will be required as per Section 5.2.

Grantee lneliaibilitv. The Grantee shall be required to repay/return awarded grant funds should the
project be deemed inelígible.

7 MISCELTANEOUS

lndemnification. Each party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other partç its officers,
employees, agents, and successors-in-interest against any and all claims, suits or actions resulting
solely from the performance by the indemnifying party of its duties under this Agreement, excepting
only such claims, suits or act¡ons that are caused by the sole neglígence or willful misconduct of the
indemnifying party,

Notíces and Contoct. All notices required by thís Agreement shall be given in writing and will be

effective when served by personal delivery, upon confirmation of receipt by the recipient when sent
by e-mail or facsimile transmissíon, or four (4) calendar days after being deposited, postage prepaíd,

registered or cert¡fied, in the United States mail, to the relevant address(es) or facsimile number as set
forth in Attachment A. Other communications as may be required from time to time shall be sent to
the Contact person identified in Attachment A. Either party may change Notice and Contact
information at any time by written notice. All communicatíon to the Air District shall reference the
Project Number.

o

a

6.3

7.r

7.2

RSBPP 18.14
Hâm¡lton Un¡f¡ed School District

North Coast Un¡f¡ed

A¡r Qual¡ty Management DistrictPage 6 of 11 47



4B



7.3

7.4

7.5

Entire Aqreement. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement of the parties with respect to the
subject matter described in this Agreement, and no representation, warranties, inducements or oral
agreements have been made by any of the parties except as expressly set forth herein, or in other
contemporaneous written agreements.

Amendment This Agreement may not be changed or modified except in writing and signed by the
parties hereto.

lndependent Contractor. None of the Grantee's agents, subcontractors or employees shall be

construed as agents or employees of the Air District.

Assiqnment This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred, hypothecated, subcontracted or
pledged by Grantee without the express prior written consent of the Air District. Assignment of this
Agreement must be a condition of transfer of the vehicle identified in Attachment A to any successor

organization to the Grantee.

Severabilitv. Should any part of this Agreement be declared unconst¡tutional, invalíd, or beyond the
authority of either party to enter into or carry out, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of th¡s Agreement which shall continue in full force and effect; provided that, the remainder
of this Agreement can, absent the invalíd portion(s), reasonably be ínterpreted to give effect to the
intentions of the parties.

Force Maieure. Neither the Air District nor Grantee shall be liable or deemed to be in default for any
delay or failure in performance under this Agreement or interruption of services, directly or indirectly,
from the acts of God, civil or military authority, acts of public enemy, war, strikes, labor disputes,
shortages of suitable parts, materials, labor or transportation, or any similar cause beyond the
reasonable control of the Air District or Grantee (each, a "Force Majeure Event"). The party justly
claiming the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event must notify the other party of the Force Majeure
Event within ten (L0) calendar days of discovery of the Force Majeure Event, and will have thirty (30)

days following such Force Majeure Event to resume its performance under this Agreement; provided,
however, that the other party's correspondíng obligations (including the corresponding obligation, if
any, to pay monies when otherwise due) will be similarly suspended during such time period, and
provided further, that if the Grantee's Force Majeure Event continues for more than thirty (30) days,
the Air District may termínate this Agreement immediately and without any liability to any party, other
than for obligations incurred up to the date the Force Majeure Event commenced.

Riqht to C|aim Emission Reductions. The CARB retains the exclusive right to claim any emission
reduction credits under state or federal law that might result from emissÍons reduced by the Project
implemented pursuant to this Agreement.

CEQA Review. The Grantee must fulfill all requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEaA) with regard to the Project. This íncludes ensuring that all necessary permits and environmental
documents are prepared and that clearances are obtained from the appropriate agencies prior to
construction in compliance with the Act, state law, and localordinance.

Grant Publícity. The Grantee must acknowledge the California Climate lnvestments program as a

funding source from CARB's Low Carbon Transportation program whenever projects funded, in whole
or in part by this Agreement, are publicized in any news media, websites, brochures, publications,
audiovisuals, or other types of promotional mater¡al. The acknowledgement must read as follows: 'This
publication (or project) was supported by the "California Climate lnvestments" (CCl) program.
Guídelines for the usage of the CCI logo can be found at www.arb.ca.gov/ccifundingguidelínes.'

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.70

7.Lt

RSBPP 18-14
Hamilton Un¡f¡ed School D¡strict

North Coast Unified
A¡r qual¡ty Management Distr¡ctPage 7 of 11 49



50



7.12 Attorney Fees. ln the event the Air District is required to enforce any terms or conditions of this
Agreement by court action, it shall be entitled to an award of attorney's fees and costs.

7.L3 Third Partv Beneficiorv Riahts. The CARB is an intended third party beneficiary of this Agreement and

reserves the right to audit and enforce the terms of this Agreement at any time throughout the
duration of the Equipment Acquisition and Ut¡l¡zatíon Phases, and for a períod of three (3) years

beginning on the date the Equipment Utilization Phases ends.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed on their behalf by

their authorized representatives effective as of the date of the last party signing below.

HAMILTON UNIFIED

SCHOOL DISTRICT

Charles Tracy, Supe rintendent

Date

NORTH COAST UNIFIED AIR QUALITY
MANAGEMENT AI R DISTRICT

Brian Wilson, Air Pollution ControlOfficer

Date:

RSBPP 18-L4
Ham¡lton Unif¡ed School District

North Coast unified
Page 8 of 11 A¡r quality Management D¡strict 5l



52



ATTACHMENT A. PROJECT SPECIFIC INFORMATION

Except as otherwise provided, all capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.

1. Grantee: Hamilton Unified School District

2. Project Number: RSBPP L8-14

3. D¡strict Approval Date: AugustZL,2Ot9

4. Scope of Work - Project Description: The purchase of one (1) eligible school bus ("New Bus") to replace

an existing in-use school bus ("Old Bus"). Project Equipment includes the Old Bus, New Bus, and purchase of
renewable fuel (dÍesel, compressed natural gas, or propane) necessary for the operation of the New Bus. The

New Bus must meet or exceed the emission specifications listed in the table below. During the Equipment

Acquisition Phase,the Grantee shall purchase the New Bus and a sufficient quantity of renewable fuelto propel

the New Bus for the length of the agreement term. The Old Bus shall be scrapped, wrecked, and dismantled in

accordance wíth Section 3 of the Agreement. During the Equipment Utilization Phase, and after securing the
proper CHP certifications, the Grantee shall place the New Bus into active service and make all reasonable

efforts to use it in the same manner as the Old Bus it replaced. The Grantee shall collect and record information
on the operation of the Project Equipment for annual reporting. The report shall be prepared using a form
provided by the Air District, however, the Grantee may submit additional information or materials as deemed
appropriate. Each report¡ng period shall be twelve (12) months in length and shall begin on December 31 of
the year the New Bus is placed into active service. There are four reporting events, which will capture calendar
year usage and usage based on !2,24, and 36 months ofoperation.

Proiect Equipment

An eligible replacement school bus ("New Bus") is defined as a new (current model year) hybrid or internal
combustion engine school bus uòing renewable fuel (diesel, compressed naturalgas, propane)and whose

engine meets or exceeds the following emission standards:

5. Maximum Amount of Grant Funds Awarded: 5165,000.00
According to program guidelines, the reimbursement of eligible project costs for the project described in
Section 4 above shall not exceed $165,000.00 in Rural School Bus Pilot Project grant awards. The maximum
amount of grant funds awarded for this project ¡s 5165,000.00. The actual amount paid under this agreement
is further limited to eligible project costs. Eligible project costs include: The cost of the New Bus (vehicle price,

taxes, and environmental disposalfees), and the incremental cost of the renewable fuel. RuralSchool Bus Pilot
Project grant awards may not exceed the Maximum Funding Levels allowed under the grant and the total

RSBPP 18-14
Ham¡lton Un¡f¡ed School D¡strict

North Coast Un¡fied
Air Quality Management D¡str¡ct

ln-Use Bus ("Old Bus")

License Plate # Vehicle ldentification Number Bus make and model Modelyear

826t636 1.HVBAZRM8LH699636 Ward 3700 L990

Eligible replacement school bus Emission Requirements
Nox (s/bhp-hr) PM (e/bhp-hr)

Dieselschool bus 20 0.0r.

Page 9 of 11 53



54



project costs for each category. Rural School Bus Pilot Project grant awards combined with other funding
sources may not exceed eligible project costs.

*Rural School Bus Pilot Project funded vehicle(s) cannot be co-funded with the Hybrid and Zero-Emission

Truck and Bus Voucher lncentive Project (HVIP) program.

6. Project Schedule (Milestones): The following is a list of the deliverables (performance duties), under the
Agreement which must be completed on or before the dates indicated below.

7, Reimbursement Schedule Limits: The following represent the maxímum allowable reimbursement
possible for each of the milestones listed. ln order to receive payment, the Grantee must submit
documentation as required pursuant to Section 1 of the Agreement.

RSBPP Funding (Bus)
RSBPP Funding (incremental

fuel costs)
Additional Funding* Total

5165,000.00 s- s- $165,ooo.oo

Milestone Due Date(s) / Timetable
1) lssue Purchase Order (PO)for New Bus Complete within 30 days of contract execution

2) Submit copy of PO to the Air District Within L0 days of execution

3)Deliver New Busto Grantee, AND
place New Bus into active service

On or before February L,2021.

4) Notiñ7 Air District of New Bus Delivery and
OPeration

Within 10 days of delivery

5) Dismantle / Scrap Old Bus Within 60 days of delivery of the New Bus to the
Grantee (Milestone #3).

Final Date to Submit Reimbursement Request is March t5,2O2L

6) First Annual Report
Record mileage on December 31* of the year the
New Bus ís placed into active service. Reports willbe
due the following January 31$

7) Second Annual Report
Record mileage on December 3L't and 12 months
after the New Bus was first placed ¡nto service.
Reports wíll be due the following January 31st

8)Third Annual Report
Record mileage on December 31* and 24 months
after the new bus was first placed ínto service.
Reports will be due the followíng January 31't

9) Fourth Annual Report
Record mileage on December 31't and 36 months
after the New Bus was first placed ínto service.
Reports will be due the following January 3L't

Milestone Maximum Payment
#5 - New Bus in Service & Old Bus Dismantled

S165,ooo.oo

#6 - 8 - lncremental Cost of Renewable Fuel
(The Grantee may claim lncremental Renewable Fuel
costs through March 75,2027. Fuel cost accrued after
thís date is the sole responsibility of the Grantee.)

RSBPP 18-14
Hamilton Unified School District

North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management ÐistrictPage 10 of 1L 55



56



8. Notices: Any required written notice shall be addressed to:

Grantee:
Charles Tracy
Superintendent
Hamilton Unified School District
P.O. Box 488
Hamílton City, CA 95951-

530-826-3261 ext.6004

Vehicle Garaee:
620 Canal Street
Hamilton City, CA 9595L

9. Contacts: Contact persons for day-to-day activities of the Project are

Grantee:
Charles Tracy
Superintendent
Hamilton Unified School District
P.O: Box 488
Hamilton City, CA 95951
530-826-3261 ext.6004
ctracy@ h usdschools.org

District:
Brian Wilson
Air Pollution Control Officer
North Coast Unified AQMD
707 L Street
Eureka, CA 95501
(7071443-3093

District:
Erin Squire
Air Quality Specialist
North Coast Unified AQMD
707 L Street
Eureka, CA 9550L
(707].443-3093
esquire@ncuaqmd.org

Location of Records:
620 Canal Street
Hamilton City, CA 9595L

10. Vehicle Garage & Location of Records: The physical address where the new bus and old bus are housed
(vehicle yard) and the location where operational records are kept.

RSBPP L8-14
Hami¡ton Unified School District

North Coast Un¡f¡ed
Air Quality Management Distr¡ctPage L1 of 1L 57



58



ATTACI{MENT B - Reirnbursement Request Form
Project Number: RSBPP RSBPP L8-L4

School District: Hamilton Unified School District Contact Person:

ln order to request payment for the Rural School Bus Pilot Project, submit this form within 60 days of receiving
the "new bus," and no laterthan March L5,2OZt. Allfields must be completed and required documents received
to be considered for payment.

The following is a list of documents and photographs that must accompany this form, as per section L.2 of your
Grant Agreement. A separate form must be completed for each bus.

All Project Types

¡ Vendor lnvoice

¡ CHP Safety Certification documentation
ü DMV Registration

r Photographs of the following (New Bus):
u VlN Number (Bus Manufacturers lD tag)
¡ Engine SerialNumber
¡ New Bus Number/Fleet lD #
n License Plate, if available

n Copies of any checks paid by the Grantee
¡ ARB Executive Order for the new bus or engine

Cornbustion Engine Projects Only

n Completed Dismantle Certification Form

n Receipts for renewable fuel purchase

(if applicable)

Zero-Emission Projects Only
r lnvoice documenting infrastructure costs

(if applicable)
tr Completed Old Bus Designation Form
n Completed Dismantle Certification Form

(if applicable)

New Bus lnformation

Payee lnformation

Vehicle Make: Vehicle Model:

Vehicle ldentification Number:

License Plate Number (if available): Bus lD#: Odometer Reading:

Engine Make Engine Model Engine Serial Number:

Vehicle costs: lnfrastructure or fuel costs:
Make Check payable to Make Check payable to:

Address Address

City State Zíp City: State: zip

Contact: Contact:

Page 1 of2

59



60



ATTACHMENT B - Reimbursement Request Form
Project Number: RSBPP RSBPP L8-I4

Payment Claim

Costs Claim Amount District Use

New Bus Cost:

lnfrastructure:

Renewable Fuel:

Total:

The total claimed for payment must not exceeded the "Total Grant Award" listed in Attachment A, Section 5 of
your Rural School Bus Pilot Project Grant Agreement.

I certify that the information reported on th¡s form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and that I have

taken reasonable measures to ensure its accuracy and completeness. Further, the informat¡on reported describes

the purchase of a new school bus with RSBPP funds pursuant to the terms of the RSBPP grant agreement specific
for this new unit.

X

Signature Printed Name Date

s$

$ $

Verified By: Approved By:

Date Dates s

ss

Page 2 of 2

6L



62



RESOLUTION No. 1&19-105
BEFORE THE HAMILTON IINIFIED SCHOOL DISTRÍCT GOVERNING BOARD

AUTHORTZING PARTICIPATION IN THE RURAL SCHOOL BUS PILOT PROJECT

regular session; and

IilHEREAS, California Climate Investments are funded by the State proceeds from Cap-and-Trade
auctions. These funds provide an opportunity for the State to invest in projects that help achievE our
climate goals and provide benefits to disadvantaged communities; and

WHEREAS, the California AirResources Board (CARB) created the Rural School Bus Pilot Project
(RSBPP), and has ailocated funding from the Califomia Climate Investments; and

W.HEREAS, the North Coast Unified Air QualityManagement District (NCUAQMD) has been selected
to administEr the RSBPP on beh¿lf of CARB; and

füIIEREAS, the NCUAQMD requires the submission of infomration, on standardized fonns (application
forrrs), to detemrine eligibility and to rank proposed projects; and

ltl/HEREAS, if selected to receive funding, in orderto participate in the RSBPP, the grantee is required
to enter into an agreem€nt with the NCUAQMD wherein the fulfilbnent of terrns and conditions is
required in order to receive the funding.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLYED, that the Governing Board of the llamilton Unified School
District authorizes the submission of applications for Rural School Bus Pilot Project grants; and

BE IT FIIRTHER RESOLYEE, that if selected for funding, the Superintendent is authorized to enter
into binding contracts on behalf of the school district and to act, as needed" to ensu¡e the confact terms
are satisfied.

On motion of Seconded by

resolution is herebyPASSED andtåe foregoing
ADOPTED BY the District GoverningBoard on this 3d day ofOctobsr, 2018
by the following votes:

AYES:{ ABSTAN: C

NOES:Q

Hamilton Unified School District

%.¡!-r-r tt {r^,

ABSENT: I

Gabriel Leal, Soarð

Lower, Clerk of the Board

63



64



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTR¡CT

HAMITTON HIGH SCHOOT SITE EXPANS¡ON.PERMITTING STATUS

BOARD DISCUSSION ITEM

ocToBER 23,2OL9

CURRENT SITE PURCHASE STATUS & TIMELINE-(Defer to Supt. & Legal Counsel)

CDE SITE PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS

DEPARTMENT OF TOX|C SUBSTANCES CONTROL (NVs)

o Preliminary Environmental Assessment Scope; DTSC Comments returned to District-District &
Consultant have made requested amendments. No apparent cost impacts for study.

o On site sampling scheduled for the week of October 27.

cAUFORNTA ENVTRONMENTAL QUALTTY ACT (PTACEWORKS)

o Construction Data requests in process; will be incorporated in final Project Description
o On site studies & sampling scheduled for the week of October 27.

TrTrE 5 REPORTS (PTACEWORKS)-

r Pipeline Safety Study: Research & Report Complete. SUMMARY-No mitigation measures
required.

Railway Safety Study: Research & Report Complete. SUMMARY: No special risks or
mitigation required.

Dam lnundation Study: Research & Report Complete. SUMMARY: Dam lnundation: "Ihe
school site is within the inundation zones of Block Butte Dom and Shasto Dom. lt is highly

unlikely thot either the Black Butte Dom or Shasto Dom would experience a catastrophic failure,
even in the cose of a moximum credible earthquoke. As flood depths would not reach the school

site for 7 hours at the earliest, there would be adequote time for the safe evacuation of students

ond staff at Homilton High School in the unlikely event of o dom failure. However, becouse the

school site is locoted within the inundation zones for two dams, it is recommended thot the

District coordinate with the Glenn County Sheriff/Office of Emergency Servíces to ensure thot
they are notified vio the SEMS ond CodeRED in the case of an imminent dam failure or other
naturol disaster."

EDUCATIoNAL SPECI FICATIONS (iep2)

lnitial Scoping Meeting with Superintendent 7l2l2ùt9; Sup't. now putting together Focus

Group membership lists (i.e. Site Faculty, Parent Groups, District Support Staff, etc.)

a

a

a

65



66



zOLg Local lndicators for LCAP
Date Presented to Local Governing Board: October 23,20L9

Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned

lnstructional Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities

LCFF Priority 1 (tEA Requirement)

Self-Reflection Tool

Standard: LEA annuolly meosures its progress in meeting the Williams settlement requirements ot 700% ot oll its

school sites, as applicable, ond promptly oddresses ony complaints or other deficiencies identified throughout the

academic yeoL os applicable; ond provides information onnually on progress meeting this standord to its local

governing board and to stakeholders ond the public through the evaluøtion rubrics.

lndicator Data Reported

Number & Percent of misassignments of teachers of English Learner Students #2/s%
Number & Percent of total teacher misassignments #2/s%
Number of vacant teacher positions #0 /o%
Number & Percent of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned
instructional materials for use at school and at home

#0 / OYo

Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the "good repair" standard
(including deficiencíes and extreme deficiencies)

#0

Optional: Provide any additional information that the local educational agency believes is relevant to understanding
its progress on meeting the requirements for appropriately assigned teachers, access to curriculum-aligned
instructional materials, and safe, clean and functional schoolfacilities.

Criteria: Assessment of the LEAs performance on meeting the standard: MET

67



lmplementation of State Academic Standards

ffiFFPrÍoríty 2

Stondord: LEA annually measures its progress implementing state øcademic stondords ond reports the results to

its locoi governing board at o regularly scheduled meeting oi the locoi gaverning baorci anci ta stakeholders and

the public through the evaluotion rubrics. Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 7 - Explorøtion and Reseorch Phase; 2

- Beginning Development; 3 - lnitial lmplementation;4 - Full lmplementstion; 5 - Full lmplementatian ønd

Sustainobiiity

20L7-L8 2018,19 20L9-20

Content Overall Overall PD Materials Structures Overall

ELA 3 4 #4 4 z4 4

TLTJ 3 3 +3 44 43 4

tulath 4 + 4 4 4

IYIJ) 2 ¿ 4+L l. 51 I

HSS 2 3 #4 +4 z3/4 4

CTE NA 3 +

Heath 2 3 4

PE 3 4 4

VPA 2 2 4

Language NA 3 4

LEA's progress Weighted Ave

Staff-wide PD needs Æ3.L

lndividual PD needs u2.8

Provide support for unmastered standards Æ2.8

68



School Climate

LCFF Priority 3 -Parent Engagement

Stondard: LEA onnually meosures its progress implementing state ocademic standords and reports the results to

its local governing board ot a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board and to stakeholders ond

the public.

Hamilton Unified School District administered a local survey to parents/guardians ín at least one grade

wíthin each grade span thatthe localeducationalagency serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8,9-L2), and was asked

to summarize the following:

lnput for Parent lnvolvement LCAP 2019-20 Update was gathered using California School Parent Survey

administered beginning mid February to March L,2019. This spring the survey was available on-line, additionally

a paper copy was also sent home. There were 122 respondents.

The kev findings from the survev related to oromoting parental participation in orograms:
o ln orderto promote parentalparticipation in HUSD activities, HES has implemented additionalparent

initiatives. This includes Academic Parent Teacher Teams (APTT), monthly parent lunches featuring

rotating topics. 82% of parents feel welcome at their child's school, 93o/o of parents believe that school

staff is helpful to parents.

Whether the findinss relate to the soals established for other Local Control Fundins Formula priorities in the

Local Control and Accountabilitv Plan:

¡ ln order to seek input from parents/guardians for decisions related to our LCAP action steps, HUSD

continues to develop initiatives such as GEAR UP for increasing student participation in a college and

career readiness path. Only 37% of parents districtwide believe HUSD is providing information on how to

help their children plan for college or vocational school. Additional counseling support with the

additional GEAR UP personnel should help improve our CCR outcomes.

Whv the local educational asencv chose the selected survev:

o HUSD chose the California School Parent Survey, as means to gather parent input on a variety of topics

This allowed unfiltered feedback from our community. We also used a paper survey option as well

increasing our participation substantially.

69



CalrrraI flirrrrfa

I fEE Drirrrifrr Â-C*rrrlanf Crrnrarrbvr ¡ r ¡ ¡vr r*t v stYuvr.* svr lvt

C+^^.¡^-I. I r^ ^¡*l^:-+^-- - l^-^l ^li-^+^ ^+ l^^-+ ^.,^-, ¡+L^-.'^^- +L-¡ ^-^.,i,J^- ^ .,^l;J *^^-"-^ ^fJLOilUOtL¡, Lf,'irldUilil¡ilJ(gtJO rVLOrLilrrrOLgJUrVçy OLrEOJLtVgryVLrtEr ygdr LllOLPrUVtug¡O VdilL¡ lrrGOJUrgUr

perceptions of school safety and connectedness, such as the California Healthy Kids Survey, to str.¡dents in at

least one gracie within the grade span(s) that the LEA serves (e.g. K-5, 6-8,9-12ì, anci reports the results to its
ln¡¡l cnrra¡nina Jrnrr¡l rf r raor rlarh¡ c¡ha¡lr ¡la¡l maaf inc nf tha ln¡al anrrarninc lrn¡r¡l rn¡l +n cf rlzahnl¡larc rnrl +ho,vLe,6vYv',r,r,6 vvu¡ rbs,q. bevç¡,¡,,ró úvs,s silv

publ¡c through the Calífornia Schooi Dashboard. Provide a Ndrrative Summary.

The local educational agency was asked to prcvide a narrative summary cf the local adrninistration and analysis

of a iocai climate survey that captures a valid measure of student perceptions of schooi safety and

connectedness in at least one grade w¡th¡n the grade span (e.9., K-5, 6-8, 9-L21.

Hamilton Unified School District used two surveys to obtain information from students

e California Healthy Kids Survey 2OI7-78 (grades 7,9, 7L graders);
¡ l^alifnrnia lJarlf hrr lli¡lc (r rn¡arr ,ní a-1 O Iat¡¡lac A Ê,1rr¡q r rusrrrrt r\rvJ evr Yvy &v¡v ¿J !óruvvJ -r v-r,

ê_t- _ _t
5eROO¡ LÕnReetedfìess:

. 
"^",h"rgt*h 

grade and 6th grade students rated themselves similarly on academ¡c motivat¡on,4th
grade students felt very connected to school, 83% rated their connectedness high, compared to only

33% of 6th graders. This increases at higher grade levels however, with 66% of gth graders and 69% of
11th graders feeling connected to school, this despite decreasing academlc motivation. Only 15% of
1Lth graders rated their academic motivation high.

School Rules and Consequences:

r At HES consistent application of rules and consequences, as perceíved is still an area for improvement.

78% of Ath graders view the díscipline system as fair, while only 63% believe it is. Rules at the

elementary school are clear, based on student feedback, 96% of 4fh graders know the rules, most or all

of the time. 76% of time know the rules most or all of the tíme. This has been an MTSS initiative.

Safetv:

o 84% of 4th graders and73% of 6th graders feel safe, however just over sjo/o of 4th graders have been

calledanegativenameorhadrumorsspread. lncontrast43%and33%respectívelyof6thgradershave
had rumors spread or been called names. Students report an anti-bullying climate, supported by

teacher and student actions to stop bullying. 68% of 9th graders feel safe or very safe at school,

compared to 62% of L1th graders.

Mental Health

One area of interest and possible action is under mental health. Across the surveys, from 20to 32% of
ctr rrlpntq har¡c pvnoripnred rhronic c¡dnpcc/hnnelcqçnpçç ln f he ?O17-1 R çr rnrer¡ annrnvimatelv 4Oo/^ of

students had caring adult relationships, compared to 86% of 4th graders and 63% of 6th graders.

70

a



Bond and Property Expenses

TOTAT CONSULTANT & PROPERW EXPENSES BY YEAR

12018-19
I

I vendor
€alifornia Appraisals

Educat¡onal Fac¡l¡ties Program Management LLC

Glenn County Elections

Holdrege & Kull (NV5)

Holdrege & Kull (NV5)

HUSD Rêvolving Fund

Placeworks lnc.

Placeworks lnc.

School Works lnc.

Western Valuation Professional

POf
Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Ves

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

PO#
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Þ

s
s

Reimbursable

Amount Re¡mbu¡sable

Total Amount Expended

Reimbußable Total

Total Amount Expended

Re¡mbursable Total

Description
Appraisal for future s¡te

Bond Development & Election

Bond Election Fees

Environmental Site Assessment

Prelim Assessment flo32-230-015

New property project

T¡tle 5 Risk Assessment

CEQ Rev¡ew; Expans¡on Project

oevelopment Fee Study

Apprâ¡sal - new property

19-567

19-134

PVS69

19-309

19-397

t9-524
79-5r4
19-515

18-639

19-596

s 82,654.37

s 73,r.88.37

20L9-20
vendor

Department ofTox¡c Substances Control - DTSC

Educational Facil¡ties Program Management LLC

Holdrege & Kull (NV5)

Placeworks lnc.

20-202

20-2r9
19-397

19-515

Description
Property purchase testing
Consulting for HHS Expansion Proj.

Prel¡m Assessment #032-230-015

CEQA Rev¡ew; expansion project

5 1"46,406.75

5 146,406.75

Amount

s 4,000.00

s 34,/140.00

S 3,466.00

s 4,600.00

s 4,060.62

s 1,s00.00

s 1s,2r.0.00

5 5,877.75

S 6,000.00

s 3.500.00

Encumbered

s 14,480.00

s 44,800.00

s 36,677.50

s 50.449.25

SUMMARY OF CONSULTANT & PROPERTY EXPENSES BY YEAR

Total Expenses
Re¡mburseable

9
s 82,654.37

Total Expenses

zotg-2020
s L46,406.75

Re¡mburseable 7S

s
s

From General Fund

Total Expenses
Reimburseable Expenses

229,06r.72
2L9,595.r2

SUMMARY OF BOND LEGAL EXPENSES BY YEAR

2018-19

PO#

423

423

Descript¡on

matter # 10518 Property Purchase

Negotiaion

matter # 10418 2018 Bond Discuss¡ons

vendor Amount

$1,017--T'4e, No

56,470 YesWoliver Kelley

Wol¡ver Kelley

TOTAL BOND LEGAL EXPENSES BY YEAR

20L8-2019
Total Expenses
Reímburseâble Expenses

57,487
56,470

20!9-2020
Total Expenses
Reimburseable Expenses

So.oo

So.oo

7L



72



HUSD ENROTTMENT OVER TIVE YEARS

2015-2019

5432

E
o
c

ô

201 5-l ó
290 HHS

I I EBHS

K-5
4t6

6-8
7T7 TOTAL

2019-20
8/13-e/30/1e
#STU GRADE

tl TK

39 K

45

42 2

40 3

46 4

40 5

59 6

4J 7

48 ö

ó8 I
74 r0
78 il
Ãâ 12

ó86 TOTAr

2016-17

2ó4 HHS

14 EBHS

ü4K-5
ó-8

ó92 TOTAr

2

9-20
I

#STU

ll TK

39 K

47 l
42 2

40 ?

47 4

40 5

59 6

43 7

48 I
ó8 I
74 10

79 11

EÀ 12

ó9r TOTAr

20't7.'t8
2ó9 HHS

12 EBHS

279 K-5

I 33 ó-8

693 TOTAT

Enrollment by School Year

3

School Year

2019-20
9/30-10/14/19

#STU GRADE

ll TK

39 K

47 1

42 2

40 ó

47 4

40 5

59 6

43 7

48 8

68 9

74 r0
79 1l

5ó 12

693 TOTAL

541

2018.1 9

28ó HHS

9 EBHS

292 K-5

125 6-8

712 TOTAT-

2019-20

2ó3 HHS

I4 EBHS

266 K-5

ì50 ó-8

693 TOTAr

73



74



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET
July 2Ot9

For HUSD Board Meeting October 23,2o19
First Reading

Page 1 of 1

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations,
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education
should review the materials and modify their own

BP/AR 6174 Educ¿tion for English Learners
(BP/AR revised)

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2735,2018) which prohibits districts from denying English
learners the opportunity to en¡oll in core curricular courses or courses needed for middle school promotion,
high school graduation, or college admission. Policy also adds requirement to annually designate a district
and site coordinator to oversee administration of the English Language Proficiency Assessments for
California (ELPAC). Regulation reflects NEW STATE REGULATION (Register 2019, No. 1) which
establishes a timeframe for notiffing parents/guardians of their child's ELPAC test results when the results
are received from the test contractor after the last day of instruction for the school year.

BP 6179 - Supplemental Instruction
@P revised)

Policy updated to reflect current law requiring the provision of remedial instruction to students who are
recommended for retention or aro identified as being at risk for retention. Policy also deletes reference to
federal Title I program improvement which is no longer operational, and clarifies that schools identified for
comprehensive or targeted school improvement may, but are not requted to, offer supplemental instruction.

B.B,|E 932L - Closed Session
(BB revised; E(1) and E(2) added)

Bylaw retitled and updated to incorporate material formerly in BB 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and
Reports. Bylaw also adds the requirement to provide final documents approved or adopted during closed
session to persons who have submitted a request. Section on "Matters Related to Students" provides that
student names should not be included on the agenda or reports of expulsion hearings pursuant to court
decision. Section on "Security Matters" ¡eflects the board's authority to meet in closed session with law
enforcement officials to develop a tactical r€sponse plan. Section on "Real Properly Negotiations" reflects
Attomey General publication stating the board's authority to approve a final real properry agreement in closed
session. Section on "Pending Litigation" updates legal cites. Exhibit (1) added to provide examples ofagenda
descriptions of closed session items. Exhibit (2) added to provide examples of reports of closed session
actions that must be made when the board reconvenes in open session following the closed session.

BB 9321.1- Closed Session Actions and Reports
@B deleted)

Bylaw deleted and key concepts incorporated tflBB 9321 - Closed Session.

75



76



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP fiaz.2(a)

WORI,DII4}REIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION

Note: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect dishict practice.

Education Code 51220 requires districts that serve students in grades 7-12 to offer courses in world
languages. In January 2019, the State Board of Education adopted revised content standards and
proficiency levels for world languages. The 2003 Foreien Laneuaee Franework for California Public
Schools does not reflect current content standards and is scheduled to be updated in May 2020.

The following policy may be revised by districts that do not maintain any of grades 7-12 Ðis#ststhst-d€-fot
to reflect any el€fe€n*aqr-s€hoel K-6 programs designed to

develop student's literacy in a language other than English.

In order to prepare students for global citizenship and to broaden their intercultural understanding
and career opportunities, the Governing Board shall provide students with opportunities to develop

@communicativeandculturalproficiencyandliteracyinoneormoreworld
languages@.

Note:

*ams¡\Êerls The following paragraph may be revised to reflect language cor¡rses available in the district. The
revised state content standards acknowledge the need for the study of a wide variety of languages, and
recognize American Sign Languageisæeegdue+as a fereign world language.

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend a variety of world languages to be taught in the
district's educational progr¿lm based on student interest, community needs, and available resources.
t+s/she shell alse eeris
lafigua€er whæ su€he eeurse i .

For any program designed to provide students with instruction in a language other than
English to a degree sufficient to produce proficiency in that language, the Superintendent or
designee shall estab'lish a process for schools to receive and respond to input from
parents/guardians and other stakeholders regarding the non-English language in which
instruction wiII be provided. (5 CCR 11300, ll3l2)

If American Sign Language courses are offered, they shall be open to all students regardless of
hearing status.

77



BP 6142"2(b)

WORLDÆOR*IGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

The district shall offer a sequential curriculum aligned with the state content standards, state
curriculum framework, &îd,, as applicable, California university admission requirements for
languages other than English.

(cf, 60 I I - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6I4l - Cuniculum Development and Evaluation)

requir€seat *r€ adeet€é eeurse ef
rverld la-guage+-dssiga€&te d€velep s faeilit'Êfer urderstaÊd;-g; speal':-g; read;-gt and ïrriti-g the parti€ular

Instruction in worid languages shall be offered to secondary school sfudents beginning no later
than grade 7 and shall be designed to develop students' skills in understanding, speaking, reading,
and writing the language. (Education Code 51220)

þf, 6Ia3 - Courses ofStudy)

Nete: The fellerving eptienrl para8raphis fer nse by diseieæ tårt maiûtah e-e er mere high seleels E&¡eatien
iean

Sign LæguaÊe; er viseal a*d perferm;-g arts as a eerditien ef lügh selreel gradnatien; see BP 6146,1 High

i
;nstruet¡en meets spee

te t*re standards and requkes the SBE te adept; rejeet; er medi& the reee*îetded revbiens by Maf,eh 3 I ; 20 I 9,

¡n¿¿¿i+¡eq Education Code 51228 requires districts to offer students in grades 7-12 a course of study that fulfills
the requirements and prerequisites for admission to Califomia colleges and universities; see BP 6143 - Courses of
Study. Admissions criteria for Califomia State University and University of California include two years of
coursework in one fe+eiga language other than English that has been approved by the University of California.
"Frequently Asked Questions" in the University of California's A-G Policv Resource Guide. available on its web
site,clarifuthatAmericanSignLanguagemaybeusedtofulfilltherequirementi@

. The following paragraph may be revised by
districts that do not maintain of 7-12

78



¡\ number ef distrlets U

;

BP 6142.2(c)

\MORLDIRORSIGÞ{ LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

(4 6l f 6,1 HighSeheel Gradua'íen4Eairemæcs)
(4. 6116"1L .4lteffiqtiye eredits Tewyrd Grødaatieft)

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to offer a dual-language immersion
program and may be revised to reflect district practice. ngeeti¡re Jrrly 1r 2017r P
emen¿ed E&rcatioa eede 3

lrnñersien pregreft ia whieh

GDE-ansthe The Center for Applied Linguistics notes that dual-language immersion programs are often focused
on the primary grades and that such programs may continue for five +esever years but optimally throughout grades
K- l2.;.aAlso see the accompanying administative regulation.

For further infonnation and recommendations regarding dual-languags immorsion programs, see CSBA's
governance brief Enslish Learners in Focus, Issue 2: The Promise of Two-Wav Immersion Proqrams.

The district may establish a dual-language immersion program that provides integrated language
learning and academic instruction for native speakers of English and native speakers of another
language, with the goals of high academic achievernent, first and second language proficiency,
and cross- cultural understanding. (Education Code 3 0 5 -3 06)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 60119, as a condition of receiving funds for instructional materials from any
state source, the Governing Board is required to hold a public hearing to determine, through a resolutiono whether
each student in the district has suffircient textbooks and/or instructional materials in specifred subjects, including
f€r€igÊ world language, that are aligned to the state content standards or curriculum frameworks; see BP 6161.1

- Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials.

The Board shall ensure that students have access to high-quality instructional materials in world
languages. In accordance with Board policy, teachers shall be encouraged to identifu and use
supplemental resources, such as literature, technology, newspapers and other media, dictionaries,
and volunteers from the community to enhance the world language instructional program.

(cf, 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf, 6161.1 - Selectíon qnd Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6 I 6 I. I 1 - Supplementøry Instructional Materials)

79



(cf. 6163.1- Librøry Media Centers)

The-Superintendeirt r¡rdesigreeshalFp.rovideprofessionafdevetr'crpflrenfas-riecessary-to ensurellæf
teachers of worl<i ianguages have the knowledge and skiiis they need to impiement an effective
instructional program that helps students attain academic standardso including communicative
and eultural proficÍency and understanding" 

Bp 6142.2{ð,)

\I/ônl f fì/Elrplrlarl\T r 
^ 

NllrT 
^ 

lfE rNsTÞ ITfìTr|rlN ¡/¡nnfi-,,a,l\
\sr,1rL¡¡ ¡uvs/

þJ. al3l - StalJ'Development)

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain one or more high schools. Education
Code 51225.3 requires high school students to complete a one-year course in either fereign world language, which
lncludes American Sign Language, or visual and performing arts as a condition of high school graduation; see BP
6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. Pursuant to Education Code 51243-51245 and 5 CCP. 1632,
fsreign world language instruction completed in a private school must be granted credit toward high school
graduation provided that the instruction meets specified standards and conditions; see BP/AR 6 146.ll - Alternative
Credits Towa¡d Graduation.

^. 
n"eb€r ef disÉiets baY€ eh€s€

Sfudents shall obtain credit toward high school graduation requirements for
completing one ye¿r of aene-par+eurseì* a world language or American Sign Language course
,!-- ,:,^- --^l^- ^ 

r^
ul..trrl'rB, gldtl-J Y- L¿.

þf, 61a6.1 - High School GraduatÌ,on Requirements)
(cf, 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation)

Note: A number of districts have chosen to present a biliteracy award upon high school graduation to students
who demonstrate a high level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing skills in one or more languages in
addition to English. The California Spanish Assessment, which is part of the California Assessment of
Student Performance and Progress, can be used to measure a student's competency in the Spanish language
and is suitable for assessing qualÍfïcations for the State Seal of Biliteracy. See the California Department of
Education's Also see BPiAR 5126 - Awards for Achievement.

The district shall determine appropriate measures to assess student proficÍency in world
languages offered by distrÍct schools. Students who have attained a high level of proficiency
m¿y receive recognition for their achievement, including the State Seal of Biliteracy for
students graduating from high school.

80

(cJ. ) 1¿O - AWATAS IOr Acnrcvemenr)

Note: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect indicators agreed upon by the Board and
Superintendent for evaluating the district's worldlfureign languages instructional program.



The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the
effectiveness of the district's world language program which may include, but not be limited to,
whether the districtrs world language program is serving the grade levels required by law, a
description of the district's curriculum and the extent to which it is aligned with the state's content
standards and curriculum framework, student achievement of district standards

BP 6142.2(e)

\MORLDIF€)RSI€N LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

for world language instruction, and student participation rates in each language course. Program
evaluation shall be used to identiff needed improvements and may be considered in determining
the world languages to be taught in the district.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
300-3 I 0 Educøtion for English learners
4 2 2 3 8. 0 2 Local control funding þrmulø ; cløss size requirements
44253.1-44253.1I Qualifications of teachers of English learners
44256-44257 Credential requirements, including teachers ofþrcig,tworld language
48980 Parental notifications
51212 Legislative intent to encouragef#ei#world language instruction in grades 1-6
51220 Courses ofstudy, grades 7-12
5 I 22 5. 3 High school graduation requirements
5 1 2 4 3 - 5 I 2 4 5 Alternative credits toward graduation for þræln world language instructíon ín prívate school
6 0 1 l 9 Pub lic hearings, instruçtional materials
60 6 0 5. 3 C ontent standards for world lønguage ins truction
60605.5 Revision of støte standardsþr world language ínstruction
CODE OF KEGULATIONS, TITLE 5
1632 Alternative credits toward grøduøtion for þreign language instruction in private school
11300-11316 Multílíngual and Englßh leørner educatíon

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Pronosítíon 58 Rewlatíons, Føct Sheet, August 2018
Enslísh Learners in Focus: The Enslísh Learner Roødntøo: Provídíne Dírectíon for Enelßh Leørner
Success, Governance Bríef, February 2018
Enslßh Learners in Focus, Issue 2: The Promise of Two-Wav Immersion Programs. Governance Brief,
September 2014
CALIFORNU DEPARTMENT O F EDUCATIO N PUBLICATIO NS

Multílíngual FAQ
World Lønsuases Frameurork for Californíø Publíc Schools. Kíndereørten Throush Grade Twelve

81



Cølíforniq Snønísh Assessment Føct Sheet" Mørch 2019
World LansuaqesM Standqrds for California Public Schools. Kindersarten Throush Grade Tweh)e.
adqtd Jarrusry+2W 2019-
Cølífornìø Enslísh Learner Roadrnsn: Strefstheníns Cantprehensíve Eúucetíonsl Polîcíes. Prosrøms
and Practíces for Enelísh Leørners.2ti7
gerA*n Unørø¿e çre
C E iiTER- F O R ÁP P L iEÐ L.iIí G UiS Ti C S P AB Ei C A+i A NS
/?",;Å;úrt Þv;,-i^lò. l - n"^l f ^--,,^-. F¡t¡,¡ntìaø <--^-.1 FÅit;^- )nn7

Manqsement Resaurees eontinued: (see next page)

BP 6142.2(Ð

WORLDIFI0RSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

Management Res ources : (continued)
C O MMIS S IO N O N TEAC HE R C RE D E NTIALI NG P UB LI CATI O NS
CL-622 Serving Enqlish Learners
NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSO CATION PUBT.ICATIONS
21st Cenurv Skills Maø: Wbrld Lansuuses. Janwary 2011
UNII/ERSITY O F CALIF O RNIA P UB LICATIO NS
A-G Polícv Resource Guide
WB SITES
CSBA: http : //www. csba. org
American Council on the Teaching of Foreígn Languages: http://'vwwv.actfl.org
Caliþrnia Association for B ilingual Educatíon : http : //www. go cabe. org
Caliþrnia Department of Education, Foreig+ World Languøges: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/fl
Caffirnia Language Teachers' Associøtion: hW : /hvww.cltq.net
Caliþrniø Fefeíffi World Languøge Project: http://www.stanþrd.edu/group/CFLP
Çalifemia Language Teaehers',4sseeiøtien: htlp ¡//¡¡llr¡v,elt*nel
Center for Applied Linguistics; http://www.cal.org
Natìonøl Educøtíon Assocíatíon, Pørtnership .for 21st Cenury Skills:
h@ : //www. n e ø o r g/h o m e/3 4 I I 8. htm
University of Caliþrnia, a-geffieAppræel A-G Policy Resource Guide: http://rwvw.ucop.edu/aggutde

82



(3109 3117) 7ltg

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, IVest Sacramento, California 95691
All rights rese'.r¿ed.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Instruction APt6t42.2(a)

WORLDIFORSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION

Content of Instruction

Note: Items #1é3 below reflect the f,¡¡e three categories of content standards for world languages adopted by the
State Board of Education{SBE}e*'in Jantnry4fiO9 2019. V/ithin each category, the state standards describe
four proficiency levels er perfernanee be-eh¡narks, Edneatien €ede 60605,* as added by r\8 2290 (€h, 643t

.The revised content
standards also address information literacy, technology literacy, media literacy, and emotional literacy as
outlined in the National Education Association's 21st Century Skills Map.

The district may revise the following list to reflect tåe topics æ-be addressed in the district's world language

The district's instructional program for world languages shall be designed to help students gain
knowledge about new-language systems, develop a cultural understanding and use that
knowledge to communicate. Students shall receive instruction which is aligned with state
academic standards appropriate to their age and stage of linguistic and cultural proficiency in the
following categories:

l, êentent: Str*éents shall be presented rvitlr a rvide variety ef eentent that is a€e and stage

+1. Communication: Students shall be taught to effectively convey and receive messages by
engaging in or interpreting written, spoken, andlor signed languages,, including:

83



4.. Language functions, which describe the purposes to which language is used in
culturally appropriate real-world communication

+

3

b. The setting in which the language is used, which includes using language both
within and beyond the classroom to interact in local communities and abroad

The structures used to convey meaning

*2.Cu1tures:StucientsshailreceiveinstructionthataiiowsthemtoM
interact, with compete*ce and

understandhg, with those who are native to the language in a variety of real-world
settings.

AR 6142.2(b)

WORLDÆ'0R$.IGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

kf 61a2.9a - Hístory-Social Science Instruction)

Connections: Students shall reeeive instruction that builds, reinforces, and expands
their knowledge of other disciplines using the language to develop critical thinking
and problem-solving skills, and to access and evaluate information and diverse
perspectives readÍly or only ¿vailable through the language and Íts culturesn Ín order
to function in real-world, academic and career-related settings.

ls use¿; suen as eernrr t ¿aily
s'#in€t,

(cf. 601I - Academic Standørds)

Dual-Language Immersion Programs

Note: The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to establish a dual-language immersion
program integrating native English speakers and English leamers in a class that is taught in both English and a
second language; see the accompanying Board policy.

84



I

)

Items #l-2 below reflect program models described on the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site
and be revised to reflect district

The district's dual-language immersion programs may be based on either or both of the following
models:

A 50:50 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 50
percent of the time and in English for 50 percent of the time, throughout the duration of the
program

A 90:10 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 90
percent of the time and in English for 10 percent of the time during the first year of the
program, decreasing the percentage oftime in the non-English language in each subsequent
year until there is a 50:50 balance of languages 

AR 6la2.z(c)

WORLDÆCIRSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

(cf. 617a - Educationfor English Leørners)

Native English speakers shall generally be admitted into the program only during the first grade
level at whieh the program is offered, and English learners during the first or second grade level
at which the prograp is offered. Bilingual students may enter the program at arty time. On a case-
by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may admit a student later in the program if h€kh€
d€temfu€s it is determined that the student is adequately prepared for and will benefit from the
proglam.

Note: The following paragraph reflects the recommendation of CDE in its "Multilingual FAQ," available
on its web site, and may be rwised to reflect district practice.

In enrolling students for the program, the district shall strive to maintain a ratio of half native
English speakers and half English learners, and such ratio shall not fall below one-third for either
language group except under exceptional circumstances.

Note: The following paragraph may be deleted by districts that do not offer a dual-language immersion program
in any of grades K-3.

Any dual-language immersion program offered in grades K-3 shall comply with class size
requirements specified in Education Code 42238.02. (Education Code 310)

(cf 615 I - Class Size)

85



Note: Teachers in a class serving one or more English learnçrs are required to possess the qualifications described
in Education Code 44253.1-d4253.11 and CTC leâflèt CL.622, Servine Englisü Learners. AlSo see AR 4IIZ.22 -
St¿ff Learners.

rrñ-^--^--^- 
-^..^ 

n--li^L l^^^^-^ ^-^ ^--^11^-¡ i-^ ^ J--^1 1^---^-^ :^^^-^:^^ -1^^^-^^- .L^vvlltitiçvvi ulttt ui urur{t ¡}IBrr¡ilt tt'atuqttù ¿nç çruurrçu lll ê uual-riailËuilË{' tlllillsrùlulr ul¿1ùùrrJ(,llr, Lrlç

class shall be taught by a teacher who possesses the appropriate authonzatian issued by the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

(.cf 41 12.22 - StcffTeøching English Leorners)

At the beginning of each school year ûr upon a student's enrollment, parents/gu¿rtlians shall bc
provided information on the district's dual-language immersion program and other language
acquisition programs available to students enrolled in the district, including, but not limited to, a
description of each program. (Education Code 310)

(cf. 5145.6 - Pørental Notffications)
AP.6142.2(d)

WORLDÆ¡O*SIGN LAIr{GUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

r€ô€4&4ll}.42-

Whenever ene ernere English learners are enrelled in a dual languagp irrxnerien elassreem; the

ing

(4. (112,22 Staf Teaek;ngEaglish Learners)

F{ote: Pursu¿nt fo 5 CCR 11311, disiricts are required to establish a process for schools to receive and
respond to requests from parents/guardians of students enrolled in the school to establish a language
acquisition program other than, or in addition to, programs available at the school. When the request is for
a dual-language immersion program, requests from parents/guardians of enrolled students who are native
speakers ofEnglish shall be considered along with requests from parents/guardians ofEnglish learners in
¿s¿s¡mining whether the threshold has been met to require district response. See AR 6174 - Education for
English Learners.

If a school does not currentþ offer a dual-language immersion program but the
parents/guardians of 30 or more students at the school, or 20 or more students at the same
grade level, request the establishment of such a program, the district shall determine whether
it is possible to offer such a program in accordance with 5 CCR 11311.

86



(3t09 3t17) 7ne

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691

87



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP 6179(a)

SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTION

Note: The following policy is mandated pr¡rsuant to Education Code 48070.5 and should be revised to reflect the
grade levels offered by the district.

Pursuant to Education Code 52060-52077, the Governing Board must annually adopt a local control and
accounøbility plan which includes goals and actions aligned with eigåt--state priorities, including student
achievement; sçe BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan. The provision of high-quality
supplemental instruction may be one strategy to improve student achievement outcomes for underperforming
students.

In addition, the provision of supplemental instructiotr may be a strategy to assist low-performing schools
identÍfTed by the California Department of Education for comprehensive or targeted support and
improvement pursuant to 20 USC 6311. Such schools are required to develop and implement a school plan
to improve student outcomes.

The Governing Board recognizes that high-quality supplemental instruction can motivate and
support students to attain gradeJevel academic standards, overcome academic deficiencies, and/or
acquire critical skills. The district shall offcr programs of direct, systcmatic, and intensive
supplemental instruction ts meet student needs. Supplernental instruction shall be offered in
accordance with law and may be used to assist the diskict in meeting its goals for student
achievement.

þf, 0a60 - Local Control and Accountøbility Plan)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)
(cf, 6146.5 - Elementøry/Middle School Grqduation Requirements)
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

Supplemental instruction may be offered during and outside the regular school day, including
during the summer, before sehool, after school, on Saturday, andlor during intersessions. When
supplemental instruction is offered during the regular school day, it shall not supplant the student's
instruction in the core cufficulum areas or physical education.

(cf 5148.2 - Beþre/Afier School Programs)
(cf. 6 I I 1 - School Calendar)
(cf 61 12 - School Day)
(cJ. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)
(cf 6176 - lï'eekend/Saturday Cløsses)
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs)

88



As appropriate, supplemental instruction may be provided through a classroom settin!, individual
or small group instruction, technology-based instruction, andlor an affangement with a community
or other external service provider.

BP 6179(b)

SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTION (continued)

When determined to be necessary by the principal oi designee and when written
parent/guardian consent is obtained for the student's particþation, a student may be required
toparticipateinsupp1ementa1instructionoutsidetheregularschoo1day.@

ie*

Note:
in grnd€s 2 9r inelusfu Education
Code 48070.5 mandates that districts adopt policy indicating the manner in which opportunities for remedial
instruction will be provided to students who are recommended for retention. See BP/AR 5123
Promotion/Acceleratior/Retention for information the criteria for sfudents for retention.

Supplementa1instructionsha11beofferedtostudentsingaaes-}9whoffiare
recommended for retention, or are identified as being at risk for retention, at their current grade
level. (Education Code 929fi 48070.5)

(cf. 512I - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf. 5 1 2 3 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention)
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

Neæ,.-TbsElery Student $ueeeeds ¿1.et (ESSr\) (P,L, I I I 95) repealed 20 US€ 6316 rvhieh lrad reqnked Title I

(4 052&2 Title I Pregram Imptetewent Seheel,s)
(4. 0520,3 Title { Pregrøtn lffipreven ent ÐistrietÐ

Note: Items #1-32 below are optional and may be revised to reflect district practice

In addition, supplemental instruction may be offered to:

89



ia

BP 6179(c)

SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTION (continued)

1, St-séçats wh€ af,e iéentified as behg at risk fer ret€atien based en state assessmerìt results;

@
(€. 5 l2l Grades/Evalffitien efStadent"4ehievemenÐ

@ 6162,51 Stete /[eed

Nete: Edu€atiea eede 3725
ioÊ

LL. Students who demonstrate academic deficiencies that may jeopardize their attainment of
academic standards

(cf. 6142.6 - Visuql and Performing Arts Education)
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Educatíon and Activity)
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Langrage Arts Instructíon)
hf t< I ¿) O) - ilInthoønfì¡< Iø*tøtnlìnn\

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)
(cf, 6142.94 - History-Sociql Science Instruction)

Note:Thefo1lowingoptionalitemmaybeusedbydistrictsmaintaininghighschools@
'whe need assistaneete *eet gra&ratien re$rire*ents.

+2 High schooi students who need support to successfrriiy compiete courses required for
graduation

Legal Reference: (see next page)

'90



BP 617e(d)

SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTION (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
3 7 200-37202 School cølendar
37223 Weekend classes
37252 37254,f *Fp
4 2 2 3 8. 0 I 4223341 4 2 2 3 8. 5 Lo c al c ontro I funding formul ø
46 100 Length of school day
4 8 0 7 0-4 I 0 7 0.t6 Promotion and retention
48200 Compulsory education
4898 5 Translation of notices
51210-51212 Courses of study, elementary schools
5 I 2 20-5 I 2 28 Courses of study, secondary schools
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan
60603 Definitions, core curriculum areqs
60640-60649 Caliþrnia Assessment of Student Perþrmance and Progress
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
I 1470-1 1472 Summer school
aNrTEp STATES CODE, TrTLE 20
6311 Snte pløn

Management Resources:

Everv SÊbrderxt Sueeeeds /kt 20
WEB SITES
CSBA: http : //www. csba. org
Califurnia Department of Education: http : //www. cde.cø.gov
U. S. Deparnnent of Educatíon : http : //www. ed. gov

91



(tzlts 7116) 7119

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserr¿ed.

92



CSBA Sample
Board Bylaw

Board Bylaws BB 9321(a)

CLOSED SESSION

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54962, the Goveming Board may hold a closed session only for purposes
expressly authorized by the Brown Act (Government Code 54950- 54963) or by a provision of the Education Code.
Government Code 54954.5 provides specific agenda descriptions for most closed session iterns authorized by the
Brown Act, as described throughout this bylaw and the accompanying Exhibit (1). Following the closed
session, Government Code 54957.7 requires the Board to reconvene in open session to report any action
taken in closed session, as described below and in the accompanying Exhibit (2).

The Governing Board is committed to complying with state open meeting laws and modeling
transparency in its conduct of district business. The Board shall hold a closed sessions during a

regular, special, or emergency meeting only for purposes authorized by law.
be held éuring a regr*lar; speeial; er ernergeney meeting in aeeerdanee n'ith law-

Each agenda shall contain a general description of each closed session itern to be discussed at the
meeting, as required by law and specified below. (Government Code 54954.2)

(cf, 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materiqls)

Note: Government Code 54957.7 states requires that, before holding any closed session, the Boa¡d must disclose
in an open meeting the item(s) to be discussed in the closed scssion. The Board may either state the information
on the agenda or refer the public to the item(s) as listed by number or letter on the agenda.-Thesediselesi#es-ffiaü

In the open session preceding the closed session, tThe Board shall disclose i*epæsessien the
items to be discussed in closed session. In the closed session, the Board may consider only those
matters covered in its statement. (Government Code 54957.7)

After the closed session, the Board shall reconvene in open session before adjourning the meeting;
and, when applicable, shall publicly disclose arLy action taken in the closed session, the votes or
abstentions thereono and other disclosures specified below that are applicable to the matter
being addressed. Such reports may be
made in writing or orally at the location announced in the agenda for the closed session.
(Education Code 32281; Government Code 54957.1,54957.7)

BB e321(b)

93



CLOSED SESSION (continued)

(çf. 932Í,1 ebsed Sessie¡a,4etiens end Rqerts)

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54957.1, a document approved or adopted in a closed session must be
provided to any person who has submitted a written request within 24 hours of the posting of the agenda or
who has made a sfanding request for all doeumentation as part of a request for-meeting notiees-purzuant to
Government Code 54954.1 or 5,1956.

When an action taken during a closed session involves final approv¿l or adoption of a
document such as a contract or settlement agreement, the Superintendent or designee shall
proyide a copy of the document to any person present at the conclusion of the closed session
who submitted a written request. If the action taken results in one or more substantive
amendments, the Superintendent or designee shall make the document av¿ilable the next
business day or when the necessary retyping is completed. Whenever copÍes of an approved
agreement will not be immediately released due to an amendment, the Board president shall
orally summarize the substance of the amendment for those present at the end of the closed
session. (Government Code 54957.1)

Confidentiality

ne vietim er ¿lleged Yietim of
Peffd agenéa; netie
tlre -ersen has prerieusly been publiely diselesed, (Geve*rrnent Cede 54957,7; 54961)

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54963, a Board member who discloses confidential information received in
a closed session may be referred to the local grand jury or may be subject to action in a court of law. For a
definition of confidential information and the actions that may be takçn agairrst a Board member if süch
information is disclosed, see BB 9011 - Disclosure of ConfidentiaVPrivileged Inforrration.

A Board member shall not disclose confidential information received in-¿ closed session unless
the Board authorizes the disclosure of that information. (Government Code 54963)

(cf, 9011 - Disclosure of ConJìdential/Privileged Information)

The Board shall not disclose any information that is protected by state or federal law. In addition,
no victim or alleged victim of tortious sexual conduct or child abuse shall be identified in any
Board agenda, notice, announcement, or report required by the Brown Act, unless the identity of
the person has previously been publiciy disclosed. (Govemment Code 54957 .7, 54961)

94

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

BB 9321(c)



CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Personnel Matters

Note: Government Code 54957 authorizes the use of closed sessions for personnel matters described below. For
the purpose of these closed sessions, "employee" includes an officer or independent contactor who functions as

an officer or employee but excludss Board members. The Attorney General has concluded (59 Ops.Cal.Atr.v.Gen.
532 (1976)) that it is appropriate to use a closed session to discuss and evaluate Superintendentperformance. (59

@However,underthe''personnelexception,''theBoardmaynotdiscussoractupon
any proposed change in compensation other than a reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of
disciplineì*elesed+essie+under this exception.

In Fischer v. Los Angeles Unified School District, the court interpreted Government Code 54957 and found that
the right to request an open session applies only when the Board hears specific complaints or charges brought
against the employee. Thus, the right to request an open session does not apply when the Board is meeting in
closed session to consider the appointment, employment, evaluation of perfonnance, discipline, or dismissal of an
employee.

The Board may hold a closed session under the "personnel exception" to consider the appointment,
emp1oyment,performanceeva1uation@,discip1ine,ordismissalofanemp1oyee.
Such a closed session shall not include discussion or action on proposed compensation except for
a reduction of compensation that results from the imposition of discipline. (Govemment Code
s4es7)

(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent)

þf, a I I 5 - Evaluation/Superviston)
(cf 4 1 I 8 - Dismßsal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf 42 1 5 - Evaluation/Supervision)
(cf 42 I 8 - DismissaUSuspension/Dßciplinary Action)
kf. a 3 I 5 - Evaluation/Supervision)

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54957, failure of the Board to give an employee against whom a "specific
complaint or charge" has been made the notice described below will render any action taken by the Board in the
closed session null and void. Determining whether a "specific complaint or charge" is involved is usually fact-
specific and the Board should consult legal counsel as necessary. InFurtado v. Sierra Community Colleee Dishict,
the court held that the term "specific complaints or charges" as used in Government Code 54957 does not include
negative çomments in an employee's perfonnance evaluation. In another decision, Bell v. Vistå Unified School

ft1!çis!, the court determined that a presentation to the Board by a district staff member regarding an employee's
violation of a California Interscholastic Federation rule constituted a "complaint or charge" and thus the employee
was entitled to 24-hour notice. Yot another ding, Morrison v. Housine Authority of the City of Los Aneeles
Board of Commissioners, held that when a board rejects its hearing officer's findings of fact and conducts its own
hearing, the employee must be given24-hour notice.

Furthermore, an Attorney General opinion (78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 218 (i995) has clarified that a probationary
certificated employee does not have the right to an open session when the Board is discussing whether or not to
reemploy Hher the employee for a third consecutive school year. Education Code 44929.21 allows the Board
to non-reelect a probationary certificated employee at the end of the frst or second school year as long as written
notice is given in accordance with see AR 4ll7 .6 - Decision Not to Rehire.

95



ññ 
^^^t 

/ 1\úD vJ¿L\g)

CLOSED SESSIO,\: PURJDOSES i$'fD +CEIùÐ+S (continue.l)i

The Board may also hold a closed session to hear compiaints or charges brouglrt against an
employee by another person or employee, unless the employee who is the subject of the
complaint requests an cpen session. Before the BoarC holCs a closed session on specific
--,^^--1^:,-L- ^,- ^1--L^-, 1^-^--^1-¿ ^-;:;-L ^- ^--l^--^^ a1-^ ^----^1 ^--^^ -t-^11 -^^^:--^ ---;LL^,^ -^^¿i^^ ^f,!;urnprault¡r ur {"rrar8s¡r ururrBrlt ¿18¿1ursr. alr urrryruyvç, r.rlç çIlrpruyçç Jrldll rçuçlvç wf rttçrr rrurrut' ur.

his&tr the right to have the complaints or cïrarges heard in open session if desired. Ttris rroiice
shall be delivered personaiiy or by mail at least 24 hours before the time of the session.
(Government Code 549 57)

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf, 4 I I 2. 9 /4 2 I 2. 9 /4 3 I 2. 9 - Employee Notifications)

The Board may hold a closed session to discuss a-distriet an employee's application for early
withdrawal of funds in a deferred compensation plan when the application is based on financial
hardship arising from an unforeseeable emergency due to illness, accident, casualty, or other
extraordinary event, as specified in the deferred compensationplan. (Government Code 54957.10)

Note: In Mo{epo v. Cifv of Kins, the court held that the requirement for speciatr meeting agenda items to
notice the "business to be transacted or discussed" pursuant to Government Code 54956 does not eliminate
the "brief general description of each item" requÍiement pursuant to (k¡vernment Code 5495t4.2. 'Ihe court
also held that describing the business as "public employee (employment contract)" was not suffïcient when
at least a quarter of the meeting was devoted to a discussÍon of the employee and whether to terminate the
emolovee. The cr¡urt further held that describino the item qs "nublic emnlovee dismissel"tt a,s illustreted in-_-_r_-J Ð --- -_--- -- F ---- -___r--J

Government Code 54954.5, would not violate the employee's privacy rights and it would also provide
adequate public notice that dismissal would be considered. The court noted that while Government Code
54954.5 does not provide the exclusive means of compliance with agenda specification requirements, it
demonstrates how privacy rights can be protected while also providing adequate notice.

Agenda items related to district employee appointments and employrnent shall describe the
position to be filled. Agenda iierns relaie,J io perfiirrrrarrce evaluations shall specify the title of the
employee being reviewed. Agenda items related to employee discipline, dismissal, or release
require no additional information. (Govemment Code 54954.5)

Note: Government Code 54957.1 requires the Board to publicly report any closed session action taken to
appoint, employ, dismiss, accept the resignation of, or otherwise affect the employment status of a district
employee. The Attorney General, in 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 110 (2006), opined that boards are not required
to publicly report an action taken in closed session to reject the proposed dismissal ofan employee, as such
a decision to maintain the status quo does not constitute "an action taken to dismiss."

After the closed session, the Board shall report any action taken to appoint, employ, dismiss,
^^^^-. ¿¡-^ -^^:--^¿:^- ^f ^- ^4L^--,:^^ ^jEC^^+ JL^ ^*-.l^-.*^*4 ^+^L--- ^f ^ .¡:^4..:^l ^*-l^-,^^¿rçççPL tltt rl;ÐrË¡I¿tlrurl ult lrr lrtlrtr wrÐç arrç\:L Lrrt çrrrPttryllfr_llr, Ðr,¿rLrls rrr ¡r rlrÐurçr. çrrrl,ruyEç
and shall identify the title of the affected position. The report shall be given at the public
meetÍng during which the closed session is held, except that the report of a

96



BB 9321(e)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

dismissal or nonrenewal of an employment contract shall be deferred until the first public
meeting after adminÍstrative remedies, if any, have been exhausted. (Government Code
s49s7.t)

(cti, 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Støtus Reports)

Negotiations/Collective Bargainin g

Note: The Educational Employment Relations Act (Govemment Code 3540-3549.3) makes four specific
exemptions from the Brown Act related to negotiations. Govemment Code 54957.6 provides that for the purpose
of closed sessions related to collective bargaining, "employee" includes an officer or independent contractor who
functions as an officer or employee but excludes any elected official, Board member, or other independent
contractor.

Unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties involved, the following shall not be subject to the
open meeting requ.irements of Brown Act: (Government Code 3549.1)

Any meeting and negotiating discussion between the district and a recognized or certified
employee orgarization

Any meeting of a mediator with either party or both parties to the meeting and negotiating
process

Any hearing, meeting, or investigation conducted by a factfinder or arbitrator

Any executive (closed) session of the district or between the district and its designated
representative for the purpose of discussing its position regarding any matter within the
scope of representation and instructing its designated representatives

(cf. 4140/a240/4340 - Børgaining Units)
(cf. 4 1 4 3 /424 3 - Negotiations/Consultatíon)
(cf. 4143.1/4243.1 - Public Notice - Personnel Negotiations)

Note: The Board is authorized pursuant to Govemment Code 54957.6, the "labor exception," to hold closed
sessions with the district's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation
paid in the form of fringe benefits to its represented and unrepresented employees, including the Superintendent.
The Attorney General has opined in 57 Ops. Cal. Attv. Gen.209 (1974) that a board may not meet in closed session
for such purposes without the use of a designated representative who is involved with the "bona fide" negotiations
with represented andlor unrepresented employees. The California Office of the Attomey Generalb publication
The Brown Act: Open Meetinss for Local Leeislative Bodies; also states that the "labor exception" applies to the
Board meeting in closed session to instruct its negotiator concerning negotiations with current or prospective
employees.

1

2.

J.

4.

97



BB 932i(Ð

ñf 
^õFhõñõõt^lf 

núTnn^OnC ¡È1n 
^^nf,fnLõ 

/^^.-.:-----l\Lrrt Dl!|, Ðl!ùùL\Jr\ tçUIIturUgU,,

The Baard mav meet in closed session- nrior to and durins consultations and discussions with
representatives of employee organizations and unrepresenteci empioyees, to review the Roard's
position and/or instruct its designated representative(s) regarding salaries, salary schedules, or
compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and unrepresented employees,
and, for represented employees, ffiy other matter within the statutorily provided scope of
representation. Prior to the closed session, the Board shall identify its designated representative in
open session. Any closed session held for this purpose may include discussions of the district's
available funds and funding priorities, but only insofar as they relate to providing instructions to
the Board's designated representative.

inal action on the proposed compensation of one
or more unrepresented employees shall not be taken in closed session. (Government Code
s49s7.6)

/^f 1l a, O---^--:--.^--J^--¿t- î^.-t-.-^¿\
lÇ1. ¿ I z I - ûupet tft¿efrueftl J wut,LtuÇt,/

Clesed sessions may take plaee prier te and during eensdtatiens arrd disetrssieçs with
reeresentatives ef empleyee

^^+:^^ ^- +L^ *- -^-^¡ ^^ãá^ád^+:^- ^f * ---+^.1 ^*-t^,,^^- lf7^,.^*^m+

W

within tåe stateterily prevideé seepe ef representatien, (Gel'eqnnent eede 5 1957'6)

The Roarrl also ma.-' meet in clnser-{ session r¡¡ith a sfate concili2f¡r e++aedi+feç who has intervened
in proceedings regarding any of the purposes enumerated in Government Code 54957.6.

Agenda items related to negotiations shall speciff the name(s) of the district's designated
representative(s) attending the closed session. If circumstances necessitate the absence of a

specified designated representative, an agent or designee may pafücipate in place of the absent
representative as long as the name of the agent or designee is announced at an open session held
prior to the closed session. The agenda shali also specify the name of the organization representing
the employee(s) or the position title of the unrepresented employee who is the subject of the
negotiations. (Government Code 54954.5)

Approval of an agreernent regarding labor negotiations with represented employees
pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 shall be reported after the agreement is final and has
been accepted or ratified by the other party. This report shall identify the item approved and
the other party or parties to the negotiation. (Government Code 54957.1)

98



BB e32l(g)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Matters Related to Students

wbether the stuéent skrer*ld be expelled, (Edr¡eatien eede 18918)

(4. 5414,1 Euspensien and îWulsien/Due Preeess)
(4. 51442 Suspensien and Expulsien/Ðue Prceess (ftudents with Disabilitiej\

If a public hearing would lead to the disclosure of confidential student information, tThe
Board shall meet in closed session to

consider a suspension, disciplinary action, er any other
action against a student except expulsion, or a challenge to a student record. If a written request
foropensessionisreceivedfromtheparent/glardianoradu1tstudent,iffi

e meeting shall be public,
except that any discussion at that meeting which may be in conflict with the right to privacy
of any student other than the student requesting the public meeting shall be in closed sessÍon.
(Education Code 3 5146, 48912, 4907 0)

(cf. 5 I I 7 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelledfrom Other Districts)
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)
(cf, 5144 - Discipline)

The Board shall meet in closed session to consider the expulsion of a student, unless the student
submits a written request at least five days before the date of the hearing that the hearing be held
in open session. Regardless of whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in open or closed
session, the Board may meet in closed session for the pu{pose of deliberating and determining
whether the student should be expelled. (Education Code 48918)

(cf, 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf, 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disøbilities))

Note: Although Government Code 54954.2 requires the agenda to have a brief general description of all closed
session items to be discussed, Government Code 54954.5 provides no specific description of agenda items related
to closed sessions authorized by the Education Code. Since the purpose of conducting the closed session is to
protect student privacy rights, the following optional paragraph provides that student names shall not be included
on the agenda.

99



Agenda items related to student matters shall briefly describe the reason for the closed session,
-qppeal,'' wjthout wiolating tirc

BB e321(h)

CLOSEÐ SESSION (continued)

confidentiality rights of individual students. The student shall not be named on the agenda, but a
number may be assigned to the student in order to facilitate record keeping. The agenda shall also
state that the Education Code requires closed sessions in these cases in order to prevent the
disclosure of confidential student record information.

Final action on a student matter deliberated in closed session shall be taken in open session
and shall be a matter of public record. (Education Code 35146,48918)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Nute: Alfhough Educatiuu Crlrle 48918 statcs that sfutleut expulsiuu recorrls are "nunpriyilegcd, disclosable
public records" and the Attorney General (80 Ops.Cal.Atfy.Gen. 85 (1997)) has opined that dÍstricts must
disclose the student's name, the court in Rim of the World Unifïed School District v. San Bernardino Countv
Superior Cou¡'t held that the federal Famity Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 USC 12329)
preempts.state-law. and prohibits the disclosure of student expulsion records to, the public. Failure to comply
with FERPA may lead to loss of federal funding. Because of the potential conflict between state and federal
law, it is recommended that districts consult counsel to the

However, in taking final action, the Board shall not release any information in violation of
student privacy rights provided in 20 USC 12329 or other applicable laws. In an expulsion
or other discþlinary action, the cause for the disciplinary action shall be disclosed in open
session, but the Board shall refer to the student number or other identifier and shall not
disclose the student's name.

Security Matters

The Board may meet in closed session with the Governor, Attomey General, district attorney,
district legal counsel, sheriff or chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security consultant
or a security operations manager, on matters posing atlveat to the security of public buildings; to
the security of essential public servicas, including water, drinking water, wastewater treatment,
naturai gas service, and eiectric service; or io the pubiic's right of access to pu'oiic services or public
facilities. Such discussions may be held in closed session during an emergency meeting called
pursuant to Government Code 54956.5 if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the Board
members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, by a unanimous
vote oithe mem'oers present. (Government Cocie 54956.5,54957)

þf. 0a50 - Comprehensive Søfety Plan)
(cf 3515 - Campus Security)

100



(cf, 3516 - Emergencíes and Disaster Preparedness Plan)
(cf, 9323.2 - Actìons by the Boørd)

BB e321(Ð

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Nete: Cevernraent €ede 549
enfereenreet ef{ieials speeifl€d abeve pursrraåt te Geverûraent €ede 51957, Twe tl:-ds ef tåe Beård rnsmbers

€ripplisg{:isas{err.or€*€r aetivify that lmFa
æa.þr¡qrvete eÊthe Bea''d is feq

ift

Agenda items related to these security matters shall specify the name of the law enforcement
agency and the title of the officer, or name of applicable agency representative and title, with whom
the Board will consult. (Government Code 54954.5)

The Board may meet in closed session to consult with law enforcement offïcÍals on the
development of a plan for tactical responses to criminal incidents and to approve the plan.
Following the closed session, the Board shall report any action taken to approve the plan,
but need not disclose the district's plan for tactical responses. @ducation Code 32281)

€snfereæe*vith Real Property NegotÍate*ions

Note: An Attorney General opinion (94 Ops.Cal.Att:¡.Gen. 82 (2011)) has concluded that only three subjects
related to real property negotiations may be considered in closèd session: (1) the amount of consideration the local
agency is willing to pay or accept in exchange for the real property rights to be acquired or transferred; (2) the
form, manner, and timing of how that consideration will be paid; and (3) items that are essential to arriving at the
authorized price and payment terms. Public disclosure of such items would reveal information that
Government Code 54956.8 permits to be kept confidential. Although Attorney General opinions are not
binding, they are accorded deference by the courts.

In addition, the California Office of the Attorney General publication The Brown Act: Onen Mqetinss for
Legislative Bodies states that, since Government Code 54957.1 requires the Board to report, at the
conclusion of a closed session, the approval of a final agreement concluding real property negotiations, the
Board's power to grant authority to its negotiator must also include the power to finalize any agreement s'o

negotiated.

101



The Board may meet in closed session with its real property negotiator prior to the purchase, sale,

qxcbq4gq !f lease of_rea-l prgpg_{y_by
regarding the price and terms of payment for the property. (Government Code 54956.8)

BB e321(i)

CLOSED SESSION PURJ¡OSES /H{Ð ACENÐAS (continued)

Before lioiding tlie closed session, tlie Board shall hold an open and public session to identify its
negotiator(s), an#the property under negotiatiory and +e-ryeeiS the person(s) with whom the
negotiator may negotiate. For purposes of real property transactions, negotiators may include
members of the Board. (Government Code 54956.8)

Agenda items related to real property negotiations shall specify the district negotiator attending
the closed session. If circumstances necessitate the absence of a specifie<i negotiator, an agent or
designee may participate in place of the absent negotiator as long as the name of the agent or
designee is announced at an open session held prior to the closed session. The agenda shall also

specify the name of the negotiating parties and the street address of the real property under
negotiation. If there is no street address, the agenda item shall speciff the parcel number or another
unique reference of the property. The agen<ia item shaii aiso specify whether instruction to the
negotiator will concem price, terms of payment, or both. (Government Code 54954.5)

When the Board approves a final agreement concluding real estate negotiations pursuant to
Government Code 54956.8, it shall report that approval and the substance of the agreement
in open session at the public meeting during which the closed session is held. If final approval
rests with the other party to the negotiations, the Superintendent or designee shall dÍsclose
the fact of that approval and the substance of the agreement upon inquiry by any person, as

soon as the other party or its agent has informed the district of its approval. (Government
Code 54957.1)

Pending Litigation

Based on the advice of its legal counsel, the Board may hold a closed session to confer with or
receive advice from its legal counsel regarding apending litigation when +discussion of the matter
in open session would prejudice the district's position in the litigation. For this pu{pose, "litigation"
means an¡z adjudicatory proceeding, including eminent domain, before a court, administrative
body exercising its adjudicaiory authority, hearing officer, or arbitrator. (Govemment Code
s4es6.9)

or for the district in order to grant its negotiator authority

L02



I

2.

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 54956.9, the district is considered to be a "paÍty," or to have."significant
exposure," to a litigation if any of its officers or employees is a party or has significant exposure to the litigation
under circumstances in items #l arñ#2below.

Litigation is considered "pending" in any of the following circumstances: (Government Code
s4es6.9)

BB e321(k)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Litigation to which the district is a "party" has been initiated formally. (Government Code
s4es6.e@(dxl))

A point has been reached where, in the Board's opinion based on the advice of its legal
counsel regarding the "existing facts and circumstances," there is a "significant exposure
to litigation" against the district, or the Board is meeting solely to determine whether, based
on existing facts or circumstances, a closed session is authorized. (Government Code
s4es69@ (dx2), (3))

Existíng facts and circumstances for these purposes are limited to the following
(Government Code 5495 6. 9)

Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the district but which
the district believes are not yet known to potential plaintiff(s) and which do not
need to be disclosed.

Facts and circumstances including, but not limited to, an accident, disaster,
incident, or transactional occurrence which might result in litigation against the
district, which are already known to potential plaintiff(s) and which must be
publicly disclosed before the closed session or specified on the agenda.

The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Tb# Government Claims Act or a written
threat of litigation from a potential plaintiff. The claim or written communication
must be available for public inspection.

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Agaínst the District)

A threat of litigation made by a person in an open meeting on a specific matter
within the responsibility of the Board.

A threat of litigation made by a person outside of an open meeting on a specific
matter within the responsibility of the Board, provided that the district official or
employee receiving knowledge of the threat made a record of the statement before

a.

b.

c.

d.

103



the meeting and the record is available for public inspection. Such record does not
need to identifu an alleged victim of tortious sexual eqä{ug! gL qqygng rnakrng_g

identiff an employee who isthreat of litigation on hísÆer the victim's behalf or
the alleged perpetrator of any unlawful or tortious conduct, unless the identity of
this person has been publicly disclosed.

Based on existing facts and circumstances, the Board has decided to initiate or is deciding
whether to initiate litigation" (Governrnent Code 54956.9@ (dX4))

BB e321(r)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Before holding a closed session pursuant to the pending litigation exception, the Board shall state
on the agenda or publicly announce the subdivision of Government Code 54956.9 under which the
closed session is being held. If authority is based on Government Code 54956.9@ (d)(1), the
Board shall either state the title or specifically identifu the litigation to be discussed or state that
doing so would jeopardize the district's ability to effecfüate sen'ice of process upon unsøved
parties or to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage. (Government Code
s49s6.9)

Agenda items related to pending litigation shall be described as a conference with legal counsel
regarding either "existing litigation" or "anticipated litigation." (Government Code 54954.5)

"Existing iitigation" items shaii identity the name of the case specifre<i by either the ciaimant's
name, names of parties, or case or claim number, unless the Board states that to identify the case

would jeopardize service of process or existing settlement negotiations. (Government Code
s4es4.s)

"Anticipated litigation" items shall state that there is significant exposure to litigation pursuant to
Government Code 54956.9ê) (dX2) or (3) and shall speci$, the potential number of cases. When
the district expects to initiate a suit, items related to anticipated litigation sha1l state that the
discussion relates to the initiation of litigation pursuant to Government Code 54956.9@ (dX4)
and shall specify the potential number of cases. The agenda or an oral statement before the closed
session may be required to provide additional information regarding existing facts and

circumstances described in item #2b-e above. (Government Code 54954.5)

Following the closed sessiono the Board shall publicly report, as applicable: (Government
Code 54957.1)

Approval to legal counsel to defendo appeal or not appealo or otherwÍse appear in
litigation. This report shall identify the adverse parties, if known, and the substance
of the litigation.

I

r04



) Approval to legal counsel to initiate or intervene in a lawsuit. This report'shall state
that directions to initiate or intervene in the action have been given and that the
action, defendants, and other details will be disclosed to inquiring parties after the
lawsuit is commenced unless doing so would jeopardÍze the districtrs ability to serve
process on unserved parties or its ability to conclude existing settlement negotiatÍons
to its advantage.

3. Acceptance of a signed offer from the other party or parties which finalizes the
settlement of pending Htigation. This report shall state the substance of the
agreement.

BB 9321(m)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

If approval is given to legal counsel to settle pending litigation but final approval rests with
the other party or with the court, the district shall report the fact of approval and the
substance of the agreement thereon to persons who inquire once the settlement is final.
(Government Code 54957 .l)

Joint Powers Agency Issues

Note: The following se€+ior€ppties+e paragraphs are for use by districts participating in a joint powers agency
(JPA) for insurance pooling or in a self-insurance authority.

The Board may meet in closed session to discuss a claim for the payment of tort liability losses,
public liability losses, or workers' compensation liability incurred by a joint powers agency (JPA)
formed for the purpose of insurance pooling or self-insurance authority of which the district is a
member. (Government Code 54956.95)

Closed session agenda items related to liability claims shall speciff the claimant's name and the
name of the agency against which the claim is made. (Government Code 54954.5)

(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

Following the closed session, the Board shall publicþ report the disposition of joint powers
agency or self-Ínsurance claims, including the name of the claimant(s), the name of the
agency claimed against, the substance of the claim, and the monetary settlement agreed upon
by the claimant. (Government Code 54957.1)

Note: Pursuant to Govcrnment Code 54956.96, a JPA may adopt a provision, either through a policy or through
the joint powers agreement, authorizing a school district Board member serving on the JPA board to disclose
confidential information received during the JPA board's closed session under the circumstances specified below.
Govemment Code 54954.5 provides an agenda description for the purpose of this closed session. The following
optional paragraphs are for use by districts that participate in a JPA that has adopted such a provision.

105



When the board of the JPA has so authorized and upon advice of district legal counsel, the Board
may also meet in ctrosed session in order to recei-v-e, discuss; anri tal<e aefion concerning
information obtained in a closed session of the JPA that has direct financial or liabilify
implications for the district. During the Board's closed session, a Board membsr serving on the
rñ ^ 1^^^--J ---^-. S:-^1 ^^^ ^^-J:J^-¿.:^1 :-f^*^+:^- ^^^,,:-^l l-,-:.^- ^ ^1^-^Ã ^^--:^- ^f +L^ TD 

^ 
+^Jrf\ uu¿llu IIr¿1y ursçrusqt uulllruqiltllar lrl[Jlllralruil. .luqurrs[.r uluurË a vluùçr¡ Ðçùùl\r¡r \,r r,llv Jt n LU

f^11^,., Er^^*¡ *^*L^-- /(1^.,^^^^ + l1^.7^ </lO<Ã OÁ\rçrrvw Lrvúu\r lrrvttll,/vrù. \\JvvwtrutlwllL vvuv J1 /Jv.zv)

in
a+der to oht*ie rxlviee on $'hetl"er tåe matter has direet fiûaûeial er +iabilif ir$pli€atienc fcr tåe

BB 9321(n)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Closed session agenda iterns related to conferences involving a JFA shall speciff the name of the
JPA' the closed session description used by the JPA, and the name of the Boa¡d rner¡rber
renresentins the district on the JPA board" Additional informalion listine the namcs of agencies orÞ'..--."-^.---_..-.Q__--e-

titles ofrepresentatives attending the closed session as eonsultants or other representatives shall
qlan ho innhrácrl ((ì.nvpmmcnf f'nda 5405¿. 5\

!(vv r e^¡s^^e

Review of Audit Report from California State Auditor's Office

Note: Government Code 54956.75 authorizes the Board to meet in closed session to discuss a confidential final
draft audit report from the California State Auditor's Office. This authority relates to situations in which a member
of the legislature has requested the California State Auditor's Office to audit a school district. This audit is separate

from the annual audit that districts must conduct pursuant to Education Code 41020. The law does not authorize
the Boa¡d to meet in closed session to discuss the district's annual audit.

Upon receipt of a conf,rdeniiai flrnai draft. audit repori iro¡ii iire Caiifomia Staie Auditor's Office,
the Board may meet in closed session to discuss its response to that report. After public release of
the report from the California State Auditor's Office, any Board meeting to discuss the report must
be conducted in open session, unless exempted from that requirement by some other provision of
law. (Govemment Code 54956"75)

Closed session agenda items related to an audit by the Caiifornia State Auditor's Office shall state

"Audit by California State Auditor's Office." (Government Code 54954.5)

Note: Government Code 54956.75 does not specify reporting requirements for closed sessions related to the
review of the audit report from the State Auditor. The following optional paragraph reflects the purpose of
the closed session.

106



Following the closed sessiono the Board shall publicþ confirm that the report was reviewed
and a response was prepared.

Review of Assessment Instruments

The Board may meet in closed session to review the contents of any student assessment instrument
approved or adopted for the statewide testing systern. Before any such meeting, the Board shall
agree by resolution to accept any terms or conditions established by the State Board of Education
for this review. (Education Code 60617)

@
(cÍ, 6162.51 - Støte Acadeníc Achíevement Tests)

Note: The following optional paragraph provides for compliance with Government Code 54954.2, which requires
the agenda to have a brief general description of all closed session items to be discussed. Govemment Code
54954.5 provides no specific description of agenda items related to closed sessions authorized by the Education
Code.

BB 9321(o)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Agenda items related to the review of student assessment instruments shall state that the Board is
reviewing the contents of an assessment instrument approved or adopted for the statewide testing
program and that Education Code 60617 authorizes a closed session for this purpose in order to
maintain the confidentiality of the assessment under review.

Note: Education Code 60617 does not specify reporting requirements for closed sessions related to the
review of student assessment instruments. The following optional paragraph reflects the purpose of the
closed session.

Following the closed session, the Board shall confirm that the assessment instruments were
reviewed. Any actions related to the review shall be taken in open session without revealing
any proprietary or confÏdential information and shall be a matter of public record.

Legizl Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
32281 School søfeÍy pløns
35145 Public meetings
35146 Closed session@for sludentsuspensìon or dßcíplínøry actìon
44929.21 Districts with ADA of 250 or more
48912 Governing board suspension ofstudent
48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures; hearings ønd notice
49070 Challenging content ofstudents records
49 0 73-490 79 Prívacy of student records

107



6A617 WClosed session (re revíew of contents of støtewide øssessment)
GOVERNMEIV !O.ÐE
3 5 40.35-49 3 "Êdaeattonat Empl:oymentRetotfons Acf
6252-6270 Califurnia Public Records Act
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Aci
CALIF O NNIA CONS TITUT IO N
Article 7, Section 3 Pubiic right to øccess ìnþrmatìon
UNITED STATES CODF, TITLE 2,7

12329 Fumily Educøtìonøl RíChß ønd Prívøcy Aet
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIOI{S, TITLE 34
99,1-99.8 FqmíIy EducøtíonøI Ríghts ønd Privacy
COURT DECISIONS
Moreno v. Citv of Kínp. (2005) 127 Cal.App.4rh 17
'Morrisonv. HousingAuthority of the Citv o-f Los Anzeles Board o-f Commissioners. (20A3) 107 Cai.App.ath
860
Rím of the lílorld Unílíed School Ðìstíct v. Søn Bernørdíno Coantv Suoeríor Court. (2002) 104
Cal.App.4th 1393
Bell v. Vista Unifr.ed School District. eQ0Ð(2000) 82 Cal.App. 4th 672
Fischer v. Los Anseles Unìrted School District. (1999) 70 CaLApp 4th 87
Kleitmøn v. Saperíor Court of Santa. Clara Countv. (1999) 87 Cøl Rptr. 2d

Legal Reference continued: (see next page)

RR e321(p)

CLOSED SESSION (continued)

Legal Reference: (continued)
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS. TITLE 34 (continued)
Furtado v. Sierra Communit.y Collese District (1998) 68 Cal.App. 4th 876
Roberts v. Cilv o-f Palmdale. (1993) 5 CaL, pp= 4th 363
San Diego Unionv. Citv Council. (1983) 146 Cal.App.3d 947
Sacramento Newspaper Guild v. Sacramento Countv Board o.f Supervisors. (1968) 263 CaI.App. 2d 4I

ATTO RNEY GENERAL O P INI,O N S
94 Ops.Cal.At1v. Gen. 82 (2 0 I I)
89 Oos,CøI.Attv.Gen. 110 (2006)

86 Oos.Cal.Attv.Gen. 210 (2003)
78 Ops.Cal.Attt).Gen. 218 (1995)
59 Ops.Cql.Atn.Gen. 532 (1976)

5 7 Ons Cal.Att:v. Gen. 2 09 ( I 97 4)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School Boards qnd Open Meetins Laws.240*rev. 2014
CALIFORNIA OFFICE OT THE ATTOTUEY GENENZI PUBLICAruONS
'PL^ D-^-,,- Á-]. /'l^-- 

^¡--t;-^- 
l^- f ^^;.1-t;.,- Þ^Ã;-. 1nn2lrac urvfllt nvL. vpçta tft99LLtt<r tvt Le<.ùtwLtvc uvçLçr, 2vwJ

LEAGUEOFCALIFORNIM
Ooen and Public IV: A Guide to the Ralph M. Brown Act. rev. July 2010
Ií.EB SITES
CSBA: http : //tvww.csba.org

108



Cøliþrnia Offrce of rhe Attorney Generalts4ffiee: http : //www. oag. cct.gov
Leøgt e of C affi rnia Cities : http : //www. c acitie s. org

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, W'est Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

(t2t14 6n6) 7/t9

109



110



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET
July 2OL9

For HUSD Board Meeting October 23,2O19
Second Reading

Page L of 2

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations,
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education
should review the materials and their own

BP/AR 4218.1 - DismissaVSuspension/I)isciplinary Action (Merit System)

(BP/AR added)

New policy and regulation address requirements for disciplinary proceedings for classified employees in
merit system districts. BP/AR contain material formerly in AR 4218 - DismissaVSuspension/Disciplinary
Action, and new material consistent with BP/AR 421 8 and BP/AR 4 I I 8 - DismissaVSuspension/Disciplinary
Action for certificated employees. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (Aß 2234,2018) which requires the
personnel commission to delegate its authority to an administrative law judge in cases involving allegations
of egregious misconduct with a minor.

BP 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention
(BP revised)

Policy updated to make minor revision reflecting current law pertaining to the requirement to provide
remedial instruction to students who are recommended for retention or are identified as being at risk for
retention.

BP/AR 5136 - Gangs
(BP/AR revised)

Policy and regulation updated to expand material related to supports and services for students identified as

gang members and reflect best practices for gang prevention, intervention, and suppression described in
NEW RESOURCE from the National Gang Center and in publication from the Los Angeles Police
Department.

BP/AR 6142.2 - World Language Instruction
(BP/AR revised)

Policy and regulation retitled to be consistent with terminology used in the Education Code pursuant to NEW
LAW (AB 2319,2018). Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW STATE CONTENT STANDARDS
for world language instruction adopted by the State Board of Education in January 2019. Policy also reflects
University of California guidance stating that American Sign Language courses maybe used to satisfy world
language coursework requirements for college admission, and reflects state regulations which require
districts to establish a process for receiving and responding to input from parents/guardians and other
stakeholders regarding the world language in which instruction will be provided in anyprogram sufficient to
produce proficiency in a world language. Regulation also reflects state regulation requiring districts to
establish a process for receiving and responding to parenVguardian requests to establish a language

acquisition program not currently offered at the school.

AR 6145.2 - Athletic Competition
(AR revised)

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1109, 2018) which requires districts to annually provide
student athletes and their parents/guardians an opioid fact sheet produced by the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention.

r11



BP/AR 6145.6 - International Exchange

Policy updated to clari$ the scope of the policy, separate material pertaining to district students studying in
another country and material pertaining to intemational exchange students studying in district schools, and
reflect CSBA Legal Guidance. Policy also addresses student eligibilþ, infonnation to obtain from the
placement organization, and methods that maybe used to calculate the tot¿l cost of educating an international
student for the purpose of determining tuition. Regulation reflects tlre requirement to provide the placernent
organization with written acceptance of a student's enrollment, clarifies that a studenfs enrollment may be
for one semester or one year, and adds optional language regarding the provision ofa school transcript.

LL2



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5123(a)

PROMOTION/ACCEL ERATION/RETENTION

Note: Education Code 48070 and 48070.5 mandate that the Governing Board adopt a polic¡ at a public meeting,
regarding the promotion and retention of students, including, but not limited to, promotion and retention at

levels and with provrslons.

The Goveming Board expects students to progtess through each grade level within one school
year. Toward this end, instruction shall be designed to accommodate the variety of ways that
students learn and provide strategies for addressing academic deficiencies as needed.

Students shall progress through the grade levels by dernonstrating growth in learning and meeting
grade-level standards of expected student achievement.

(cf. 601I - Academíc Standards)
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirernents)
(cf. 6146.5 - Elementary/Middle School Graduation Requirements)
(cf. 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten)

'When high academic achievement is evident, the teacher may recoÍrmend a student for
acceleration to a higher grade level. The student's maturity level shall be taken into consideration
in making a determination to accelerate a student.

Note: Education Code 48070.5 mandates that the Board's policy provide for the identification of students who
should be retained and who are at risk ofbeing retained at the end of grades 2,3,4, the intermediate grades (usually
grade 6), and the middle school grades (usually grade 8). Items #1-5 below should be revised to reflect the grade

levels offered by the district. If the Board chooses to expand these requirements to cover other grade levels, the
following list should be revised accordingly.

Education Code 48070.5 further mandates that the Board's policy provide for students to be identified as early in
the school year, and as early in their school careers, as practicable.

Teachers shall identify students who should be retained or who are atrisk of being retained at their
current grade level as early as possible in the school year and as early in their school careers as

practicable. Such students shall be identified at the following grade levels: (Education Code
48070.s)

i. Between grades 2 and3

Between grades 3 and 42.

Between grades 4 and 5

113



BP s123(b)

ÞÞ ôñf ¡fì'I" f llN/ A lìf'ü' f U' ll 
^ 

Tf fìl\I/D I"nE' l\TTrfl l\I ¡/^^-+;-,, ^,{ \r ¡\vrrrv r rvr rrllvvllp¡t'nr lvrtrlw I ga! I lvlt tvvrrlrrruwg,

Noie: If all ihe schools i¡i ihe disirici ar-e configured in the sarne manner, the dislricl may speeify the aetuai grade
levels in items #4 and 5 below between 6 and7 between 8 and 9).

Between the end of the intenmediate grades and the beginning of the middle schûûl grades

Between the end of the middle school grades and the beginning of the high school grades

4.

5

Note: Education Code 48070.5 m¿ndates that the district's policy establish the basis for identifying students who
should be retained and who are at risk of being retained. If a student performs below the minimum standard based
on indicators established by the district, the student shall be retained, unless the teachsr deterrnines that retention
is not the appropriate intervention for the student's academic defìciencies; see the accompanying administrative
regulation.

Pursuant to Education Codc 48070.5, the district may use either of the foiiowing: (i) thc student's grades and other
indicators of academic aehisv. ement designated by the district (Option I below) or (2) the results of state
assessments administered pursuant to Education Code 60640-60649 and minimum levels of proficiency
recommended by the State Board of Education (SBE) (Option 2 below). With regards to ryeeielæCueatien students
with special-treeds, the determination as to'the appropriate standards for promotiorr or reteätiori should be ¡n¿de
as part of the EP individualized education program process; see BP/AR 6159 - Individualized Education
Program.

Education Code 48070.5 provides that, when a district chooses to identify students on the basis ofgrades pursuant
to Option 1, the Board shall also designate other indicators of academic achievement that will be used. These other
indicators of achievemsnt (e.g., state or district assessments, portfolios, attendance) should be specified in the
blanks below

OPTION 1: Students shall be identified for retention on the basis of failure to meet minimum
leveis of proÍiciency, as indicated by gra<ies anci the ioiiowing additionai inciicators of acaciemic
achievement:

(cf. 5l2l - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)

Note: According to the California Department of Education's (CDE) "FAQs Pupil Promotion and Retention,"
student results from the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress may be included as indicators
of academic achievement for the purpose of identifying students for promotion or retention as provided in Option 2
below, but should not be the only criterion until minimum performance levels for this pur.oose have been established
by CDE. Other indicators of achievement (e.g., grades, district assessments, portfolios, attendance) should be

in the blanks below

114



BP 5123(c)

PROMOTION/ACCELERATION/RETENTION (continued)

OPTION 2: Students shall be identified for retention on the basis of failure to meet minimum
levels of proficiency, as indicated by the results of state assessments administered pursuant to
Education Code 60640-60649 and the following additional indicators of academic achievement:

(cf, 6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(cf 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

Note: The remainder of this is for use all districts.

Students between grades 2 and 3 and grades 3 and 4 shall be identified primarily on the basis of
their level of proficiency in reading. Proficiency in reading, English language arts, and
mathematics shall be the basis for identifuing students between grades 4 and 5, between
intermediate and middle school grades, and between middle school grades and high school grades.
(Education Code 48070.5)

(cf, 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction)
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction)

Note: Education Code 48070.5 mandates that the diskict's policy specifu the teacher(s) responsible for the
promotion/retention decision in cases where the student does not have a single regular classroom teacher. The
following paragraph should be revised to indicate the specific teacher(s) who will be responsible (e.9., teachers

for core

If a student does not have a single regular classroom teacher, the Superintendent or designee shall
specify the teacher(s) responsible for the decision to promote or retain the student. (Education
Code 48070.5)

Note: Education Code 48070.5 mandates that the diskict's policy include a process by which the teacher's decision
to or retain a student be see the administrative

The teacher's decision to promote or retain a student may be appealed in accordance with AR 5123
- Promotion/Acceleration/Retention.

Note:
¡ave Ueen retaiaeéef f e€

te previde supplernental insFueÊien te stedents ir grades 2 6 whe have been identiÊed as at risk ef retenÊiet
Pursuant to Education Code 48070.5, the Board must adopt policy indicating thc manner in which supplemental

115



instruction fer*eseAuryeses will be provided to students \üho are recommended for retention or are identified
as at risk for retention. See BP 6179 - Instruction for this mandate.

BP 5123(d)

PROMOTION/ACCELERATION/RETENTION (eontinued)

When any student in grades 2-9 is retaheder-¡ecommended for retention or is Ídentified as being at risk
for retention, the Superintendent or designee shall offer an appropriate program ofremedial instruction to
assist the student in meeting grade-level expectations.

being at risk ferr€ tien" (Education
C o de 3+25223+2523; 4 8 0 70. 5 )

(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturdøy Classes)
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Progrøms)
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

iow
46300 Methòd of computing average daily attendance
48010 Admittance tofirst grade
4 8 0 1 I Promotion/retention following one y ear of kindergarten
48 û7 û-48û7û. 5 Promoiion and retention
56345 Elements of individualized education plan program
60640-60649 California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress
CODE OF REGULATIONS. TITLE 5
200-202 Admission and exclusion of students

Manøgement Resources:
FÁf fDnD^rf À 

^DDtDîìrD^try^D 
D^f tntrf^^rDf fDf f7/Tf^^tawtutt vtuvtil uut ãt\ItutLlyI vt Luvvnravlv t vDLlvnttvl\tÐ

t¡
FAQs Pupil Promotíon and Retention
Kin d er gart en C ontinuanc e F orm
WEB SITES
CSBA: http : //www.csba. org
Caliþrnia Department of Education: http : //vttww.cde.ca. gov

116



(t2/r3 12lls) 7lt9

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, W'est Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5136(a)

GANGS

Note: The following optional policy and regulation may be used as a component ofa the district's comprehensive
distri€+ safety plan and should be revised to reflect district eir€nfis+aÉ€€s-practice. See BP/AR 0450 -
Comprehensive Safety Plan.

The National Gang Centero in its publication Çg4gg.¡j4..¡$g@þ, recommends adopting policy that addresses
gang-related Íncidents.

The Governing Board desires to keep district schools free from the threats or harmful influence of
any groups-€r€aa€sr*ieh who exhibit ehavior disruptive to
the school environment and/or the safety and well-being of students. The Board additionally
desires to provide support and intervention to students who are members of gangs to enable
them to successfully disengage from gang Ínvolvement and be successful Ín school. The
Supsinterdent er éesignee shall take steps te deter gang intimidatien ef str*dents and staff and

i€s.

þf.0a50 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cÍ, 3513.4 - Drag ønd Alcohol Free Schools)
(cf, 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)
(cÍ, 5131.6 - Alcohol ønd Other Drugs)
(cf, 5131.7 - lüeapons and Døngerous Instruments)
(cf,, 5137 - Positíve School Climøte)

ìlote: E&¡eatiea eede 512

@ien

Note: The following paragraph is based on the Los Angeles Police Department's "Why Young People Join
Gangsr" available on its web site.

II7



reasensr suen as pe
the réeé f€r a sense ef belenging; and la€k ef refi*sal skills, ihe Superintendent or deJignee
shdl develop strategies for gang prevention that address the reasons that students may
become involved in gangs, including the identityo recognition, or status achieved as being
part of ag ng, protection frorn gang violence in the communÍty, the need for companionship
and an extended family, intimidation to join il gango desire to

RU \ I {Arhlu^ J LJV\V)

GANGS (continued)

join a gang to be in a position to intimidate others, and/or connection with criminal actÍvity.

Note: The following paragraph reflects recommendations in the National Gang Center's Strategic Planning
Tool and Ganss Ín Schools, both av¿ÍI¿ble on its web site.

nge appreeriête geûg vi
Gang violence prevention shall start as earþ

as possible and includeo but not be limited to, age-appropriate education that focuses on
developing emotional and social competenceo increasing prosocial peer bonds, strengthenÍng
attaehrlrent-- and eommitment to sehool, and enhaneing eooperative -learning skÍlls.
Prevention shall also include improving parent/guardian involvement in and support for
their children's academic progress, as well as ongoing gang awareness educatÍon for
parents/guardians, inciudíng gang identifiers.

(cÍ. 5020 - Pørent Involvement)
(cf, 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

The Superintendent or designee shall take steps to deter gang activity on school campuses,
including threats and intimidatÍon of students and staffo recruitment or intimid¿tion of
students to join gangs, bullying, fïghting, criminal activities, and confrontations between
mernbers of different gangs.

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

Note: EducatÍon Code 35183 authorizes the Governing Board to approve a site-initiated plan that prohibits
the school's students from wearing gang-related apparel. The definition of "gang-related apparel" must be
limÍted to apparel that reasonably could be determined to threaten the health and safety of the school
environment, and the Board's approval must be based on a determination the policy is necessary for the
health and safety of the school environment. In Marvin II. Jeelin et al v. San Jacinto Unified School District
g!A, r federal district court held that in order to justÍfy a gang-related dress code, there must be evidence
^1 ^ -^-- -^ ^ -^L-^l --l ------t --- Ll-----L--- -l l!,,--,-[, - - - , ,Lur a Balrg pr'€sellce ar a scüuor ¡rIIu acluar ul. rilrcarslreu ur$ruplroû or lllätert¿l tûlcrlerence wtlIl Jcll(,ot
activity. Education Code 32282 specifies that for the purpose of establishing a schoolwide dress code, gang-
related apparel shall not be considered a protected form of speech pursuant to Education Code 48950. For
further see BPIAR 5132 - Dress and

118



Te fi*rther diseerra€e tlre infltrcneeefgægs; the The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that
school rules of conduct and any school dress code prohibiting gang-related apparel are enforced
consistently. If a student exhibits signs of gang affiliation, staff shall so inform the principal or
designee and the student's parent/guardian.

(cf 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

BP 5136(c)

GANGS (continued)

Note: Education Code 51265 urges districts to give high priority to in-service training programs on gang violence
and substance abuse education.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide in-service training which helps staffto identifu gangs
and gaîg symbols, recognize early manifestations of disruptive activities, and respond
appropriately to gang behavior. Staff shall be informed about conflict management techniques
and alerted to intervention measures and community resources. The Superintendent or designee
shall also provide staff development on social and emotional learning, classroom
management, interactive teaching, and cooperative learning skills.

(cl, 4131 - Søff Development)
(cÍ, 4231 - Støff Development)
(cÍ, 4331 - Støff Development)

The Superintendent or designee may consider gang activity prevention and intervention
when developing programs outside of the school day.

(cl, 5148 - Ch¡ld Care and Development)
(cl, 5148.2 - Preschool/Eørly Chìldhood Educøtíon)
(cf. 5148.3 - Beþre/After School Programs)
(cÍ, 6145 - Extracurrìculør and Cocuwículør Actívítìes)
(cl, 6145.2 - Athletíc Competítíon)

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with child welfare services, mental health
agencies, social serviceso and local law enforcement authorities in the prevention and
intervention of gang activity.

(cf, 1400 - Relølíons Between Other Governmentøl Agencìes ønd the Schools)

Legal Reference: (see next page)

119



BP s136(d)

GANGS (continued)

Legøl Reference:
EDUCATIONCODE
32282 School safety plans
3 5 I 83 Gang-related appørel
48907 Student exercise offree expressiow
489 5 0 Sndent freedom of speech
51264 Educational inservice trøining; CDE guidelines
5 1 265 Gang violence and drug and qlcohol abuse prevention inservice traíning
5 1 2 66- 5 I 2 66. 5 Model gøng and substance øbuse preventíon curriculum
PENAL CODE
186.22 Participation in criminal street gang
I 3 826- I 3826. 7 Gang violence suppression
LTNITED STATES CODE. TITLE 20
7101-7i22 Student Supporî and Acqdemic Enrichment Grqnts

Mønagement Resources:
LOS ANGELES POLICE DEPARTMENT PUBLICATIONS
Why Young People Joín Gøngs
NITIONAL GANG CENTER PABLICATIONS
Strateeíc Plønníns Tool
Ganps ín Schools. Mørch 2019
PnÍe!4t\' Guide to Gønes. July 2015
WEBSITES
Calíþrnìa Cítíes Gøng Preventíon Network: http://www.cc gpn.org
Cøliþrníø Depørtment of E duc atíon: hnps ://www. c de. ca. gov/ls/ss/sø
Gøng Resístønce Educøtíon and Training: https://www.greøt-onlìne.org/GfuEAT-Home
Los Angeles Políce Depørtment, Gangs:
h @ : //wvow. I ap d o n Iìn e. o r g/ge t_ínfo r m e d/c o nte nt_b as i c _v i ew/ I 3 9 6
Homeboy Industríe s : https ://homeboyìndustríes, org
^r^ 

¿2 ^ - -, Í1 - - - la ^ -. ^-. L u- ^. / /-.^,.-.- - ^ ¿: ^ -- ^, ^^ -t 1 Ø&LV raøt v ø ttS vç, ü aç t . ta aalt Ð. I / ry ry w. tauaav taøaËuraËçy aaac r. gv y

L20



Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights reserved.

(r0l9s 10196) 7lt9

AR s136(a)

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Students

GANGS

Note: The following optional administrative regulation may be revised to reflect district practice.

Preventionrand Intervention, and Suppression Measures

Districts may consider utilizing the Gang Resistance Education and Training Program (G.R.E.A.T.) for
students in grades  -7.Ttaght by local law enforcement, the program is designed to create stronger bonds
with students and their communities and has a family component aimed at strengthening the resiliency of
individual families susceptible to gang influences.

The Superintendent or designee shall become informed of the gang history in the district and
community, conduct assessments of current gang activity at the school sites, and document
and follow up on gang-related incidents.

Inordertodiscouragetheinfluenceofgangs,ffithefol1owingmeaSuresshaIl
be implemented:

Any student suspected of gang affTliation based on the display{ng of behavior, gesfures,
appare1,orparaphernalia@shallbereferredtotheprincipa1or
designee, and the following actions taken, as appropriate:,

1

L2T



a. The student's parent/guardian shall be contacted and may be asked to meet with
school staff in order to proactively address the concern and be included as part
of the solution.

The student may be sent home to change clothes if necessary.

(cf. 5132 - Ðress and Grooming)

The student's behaviors and progress in school shall be documented, including
attendance and grades.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Hxcuses)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chroníc Absence ønd Truancy)
(cf. 5ll3"l1 - Attendønce Supervision)
(cf, 5113.12 - Dìstrict School Attendønce Revíew Boørd)
(cÍ, 6164.2 - Guidønce/Counseling Sewíces)

AR s136(b)

^ 
A f,T^õ l^^,-L:,---^-7\\r.Él\Il\rit tUUIrtUruUu,,

Intervention techniques such as mentoring academic support and a system of
wrapârorrnd support service shall be implemented to help the student
disengage from gang involvement.

Consistent and graduated discÍpline and accountabilÍty shall be implemented
when appropriate and combined with positive support using confl¡ct-
resolution strategies and other restorative justÍce practices demonstrated to be
effective with gang-Ínvolved youth.

S'fideqts{ñeo-sçek Students shall be offered help in rejecting gang associations,
including possible referral ma¡rbe+efe+ed to community-based gang suppression
and prevention organizations.

g. Law enforcement shall be notified if the student is suspected of being involved
in gangs.

kf. Ia00 - Relations Bel.tveen Other Governmental Agencíes and the Schools)

Any gan6 graffiti on school premises shall be removed, washed down, or painted over as

soon as discovered. Graffiti shall be documented and photographed before it is removed.

b.

d.

e.

f.

L22

+2



These photographs shall be shared with local law enforcement authorities and used in
future disciplinary or criminal action against the offenders. This information can also be
used to determine whether a threat or incident is imminent.

b Graffiti shall be phetegraphed befere it is remeved, These phetegraphs shall be

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 5 131.5 - Vandalism and Grffiti)

+.3. Classroom and after-school programs may include gang prevention lessons that are
taught jointly by teachers, counselors, law enforcemento and/or other organizations
that are knowledgeable about gang prevention and a#eaeþseheel shall:

AR 5136(c)

GANGS (continued)

a. Provide social and emotional learning designed to enhance individual self-
esteem, provide positive reinforcement for acceptable behavior, and foster interest
in a variety of constructive activities

a.b. Explain the dangers of gang membership

Provide counseling for targeted at-risk students

Include lessons or role-playing workshops in gang avoidance skills and nonviolent
conflict resolution, including communication skills, anti-bullying, anger
management, acceptance ffi, and mediation skills

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

Assign individual gang members to cooperative leaming groups in which they may
work toward coflrmon goals with students who are not members of their gang

e-.f. Provideschool-to-careerinstruction

tg. Provide positive interaction with local law enforcement stafÊ

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

bc.

erd.

ée.

L23



g. Staff shall actively promote membership in authorized school clubs and student
organtzations, sports and cultural activities and affiliations with the local community, and
community service projects which can provide students companionship, safety and a sense
of purpose and belonging.rhd{ChÊi

(cf. 6i45 - Extracurricuiar qnd Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6142.4 - Sewice Leørning/Community Sert¡ice Classes)
(cf, 6145.2 - Athletic Competítion)

b. Struetured; geal erienteé eerrrnr*nity serviee prqieets

(ef. 6l f2, f Sewiee Learning/Qammunit Se,"¡'ie.e Gla.*se.s)

ParenfGuardian and CommunÍty Outreach

Note:ThefollowingoptionaIsectionmayberevisedtoreflectdistrictpractice.ffi
te Brev¡de g^-g edueatien pregrarns fur Barents/guardi^*' er the ee**edB'

AR s136(d)

GANGS (continued)

The Superintendent or designee may offer gGang prevention classes or counseling eftred for
parents/guardians which may shall address the following topics:

1. The reasons students join gangs

The dangers and consequences of gang membership

Warning signs which may indicate that ehildren students arc atrisk ofbecoming involved
with gangso including the use of social media for gang communication and promotÍon

H. The nature of local gangapparel and graffiti

+.5. Effective parenting techniques and planning family time

+.6. Conflictresolutiontechniques

in aridition, the Superintendent or designee may oäer cGommunity programs shaü that
address: 1--Tthe scope and nature of local gang problems and 2,--.$strategies by which each
segment of the community may alleviate gang problems.

7-t

*3

L24



(r0l9s 10/96) 7ltg

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, Califomia 95691
All rights rese'rved.

CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP 6142.2(a)

\TORLDIFSRSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION

Note: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice.

Education Code 51220 requires districts that serve students Ín grades 7-12 to offer courses in world
languages. In January 2019, the State Board of Education adopted revised content standards and
proficiency levels for world languages. The 2003 Foreisn Laneuaee Framework for California Public
Schools does not reflect current content standards and is scheduled to be updated in May 2020.

The following policy may be revised by districts that do not maintain any of grades 7-12 Ðis*iets+håfu
to reflect any elenen*ary+eheel K-6 programs designed to

develop student's literacy in a language other than English. Edu€atien eede 51212

In order to prepare sfudents for global citizenship and to broaden their intercultural understanding
and career opporhrnities, the Governing Board shall provide students with opportunities to develop

@communicativeandcu1tura1profÏciencyand1iteracyinoneormoreworld
languages@.

L25



*ame.ñ¡erlc The following paragraph may be revised to rcflect language çourses avallablç in the district. The
revised state content standards acknowledge the need for the study of a wide variet-v of languages, and
recognize American Sign Language-rs-reeegfüzeéas a {areign world ianguage.

Note

The Superintendeni or rJesig¡iee shall recommend a variety of world lan¡¡rages to be taugr'rt in the
district's educational program based on student interest, communit)/needs, and available resources.
Heish€ shftil else eo

.

For any program designed to provide students with instruction in a language other than
English to a degree suffÏcient to produce proficiency in that language, the Superintendent or
designee shall establish a process for schools to receive and respond to input from
parents/guardians and other stakeholders regarding the non-English language in which
instruction will be provided. (5 CCR 11300, ll3l2ì

If American Sign Language courses are offered, they shali be open to ail students regardlcss of
hearing status.

BP 6t42.2(b)

WORLDßORSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

Note:

isiens

¡n-a¿e¡çeq Education Code 51228 requires districts to offer students in grades 7-12 a course of study that fulfills
the requirements and prerequisites for admission to California colleges and universities; see BP 6143 - Courses of
Study. Admissions criteria for Califomia State University and University of California include two years of
coursework in one fereige language other than English that has been approved by the University of Califomia.
''FrequentlyAskedQuestions''intheUniversityofCalifornia's@,ava|lableonitsweb
site,c1arifythatAmericanSignLanguagemaybeusedtofu1fi1ltherequirementi@
ergtisb bËt sigrìing fu . The following paragraph may be revised by
districts that do not maintain any of 7-12

The district shal1 offer a sequential curriculum aligned with the state content standards, state
curriculum framework, and, as applicable, California university admission requirements for
languages other than English.

I26



(cf 601I - Acqdemic Standards)

þf 6lal - Curriculum Development and Evaluøtion)

Nete: Th€ felle$rin^ pff

werld languaÊes designed te develep a faeility fer tmdersta¡rding; speak.ing; reading; a"rd writing tlre partieular

Instruction in world languages shall be offered to secondary school students beginning no later
than grade 7 and shall be designed to develop studentsr skills in understanding, speaking, reading,
and writing the language. (Education Code 51220)

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

Nete: The fellerving epúienal paragraph is fer use by distriets tåat maintain ene er *ere rúgh seh€els, E&reatien
iear

irìstruetiea eempleted i
instrBetien nÌeets spe€

BP 6142.2(c)

\MOIILDÆOPEIGN LA|IGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

(4. 61 46. I HEh Seheel Graduatien Requirements)
(4 6l l6,ll4ltemative eredits Teward Graduatierù

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to offer a dual-language immersion
program and may be revised to reflect district practice. Etreetive Jr*ly 1; 2gt7t

i
pregraffis er ether ler€B
êDE-anétåe The Center for Applied Linguistics notes that dual-language immersion programs are often focused
on the primary grades and that such programs may coritinue for five tese¡*en years but optimally throughout grades

K- 1 2.;aAlso see the accompanying administrative regulation.

L27



For further information and recommendations regarding dual-language immersion programs, see CSBA's
brief

The district may establish a dualJanguage immersion program that provides integrated language
leaming and academic instruction for native speakers of English and native speakers of another
ianguage, with the goals of iúgh acadenric aohievemeni, first and second ianguage proficiency,
and cross-cultural understanding. (Education Code 3 05-3 û6)

ñT^+^. D,,--,,^-+ +^ El,,^-+: ^- f1^Ã^ <Al t ô ^- ^ ^^-l:¿:^- ^g -^^^:-,t-- c,-.¡^ f^- :--+-.^+:^-^1 *^+^-:^l- f-^* ^-.,rrvl!. r u¡ôudrL ru Luuv4L¡v¡¡ vvuv vvr t2, qt q vv¡lu¡L¡ulr vr lçvçlvurË rur¡uù lvl uùuullluuo¡ u4Lçll4rs uvu 4-y

state source, the Governing Board is required to hold a public hearing to determine, through a resolution, whether
each student in the district has sufficient textbooi<s and/or instructional materials in specified subjects, inclutiing
forergn world language, that are aligned to the state content standards or curriculum frameworks; see BP 6 161 . 1

- Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials.

The Board shall ensure that students have access to high-quality instructional materials in world
languages. In accordance with Board policy, teachers shall be encolraged to identifr and use
supplemental resources, such as literature, technology, newspapers and other media, dictionaries,
and volunteers from the community to enhance the world language instructional program.

(cf. I 240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection qnd Evqluqtion of Insrructional Materials)
(cJ. ó1ó1.11 - Supplementary lnstructionøl Materials)
(cf. 6163.1- Librøry Media Centers)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as necessary to e,nsure that
teachers of world languages have the knowledge and skiils they need to implement an effective
instructional program that heips students attain academic standards, including communicative
¡nd crrlturel nroficiencv anrI undersfandinp,'- ¡-- --------J ----- 

BP 6r42.2(d)

WORLDÆ€IRSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

kf. a13l - StaffDevelopment)

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain one or more high schools. Education
Code 51225.3 requires high school students to complete a one-year course in either fereþn world language, which
includes American Sign Language, or visual and performing arts as a condition of high school graduation; see BP
6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. Pursuant to Education Code 51243-51245 and,5 CCR 1632,
f€r€igû world language instruction completed in a private school must be granted credit toward high school
graduation provided that the instruction meets specified standards and conditions; see BP/AR 6146.ll - Alternative
Credits Toward Graduation.

¿\ ffirrber ef distriets bave ehe

L28



Students shall obtain credit toward high school graduation requirements for €effipt€tiæof
completing one year of aene-yeareeursein a world language or American Sign Language course
during grades 9-12.

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)

þf. 6Ia6.1l - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation)

Note: A number of districts have chosen to present a biliteracy award upon high school graduation to students
who demonstrate a high level of proficiency in speaking, reading, and writing skills in one or more languages in
addition to English. The California Spanish Assessment, which is part of the CalÍfornia Assessment of
Student Performance and Progress, can be used to measure a student's competency in the Spanish language
and is suitable for assessing qualifìcations for the State Seal of Biliteracy. See the California Department of
EducatÍon's California Spanish Assessment Fact Sheet. Also see BP/AR 5126 - Awards for Achievement.

The district shall determine appropriate measures to assess student proficiency in world
languages offered by district schools. Students who have attained a high level of proficiency
may receive recognition for their achievement, including the State Seal of Biliteracy for
sfudents graduating from high school.

(cf. 5126 - Awardsþr Achievement)

Note: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect indicators agreed upon by the Board and

Superintendent for evaluating the district's worldÆareigâ languages instructional program.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide periodic reports to the Board regarding the
effectiveness of the district's world language program which may include, but not be limited to,
whether the district's world language program is serving the grade levels required by law, a

description of the district's curriculum and the extent to which it is aligned with the state's content
standards and curriculum framework, student achievement of district standards

BP 6142.2(e)

WORLDÆ€)RSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

for world language instruction, and student participation rates in each language course. Program
evaluation shall be used to identify needed improvements and may be considered in determining
the world languages to be taught in the district.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

I29



300-3 I 0 Education for English learners
4 2 2 3 8. 0 2 Local control funding formula ; class size requirements
/taa, ttaFl ,7 

^----r:4--2:---- -12---r----- -1D,--r:-r- r--,,,+1¿J).t-+.t¿JJ.t r vuuatJtcuttutls uJ ¿egcneft uJ DrtE,tLSn [eurÍrers
44256-44257 Credential requirements, including ieachers ofþaeigh world lønguøge
489t0 Farenial notfficaiions
5 12 12 Legßlatíve intent to encourage _@ world language instruction in grades l-6
51220 Courses ofstudlt, grades 7-12
) I ¿¿J.J l-!¿gn SCnOOt grAøUAr¿On requtremenß
51243-51245 Alternativecreditstowardgraduationþrþ'reignworldlanguageinstructioninprivateschool
6ti 19 Public hearings, instructional materials
6û6û5.3 Conteni stanrÍards þr world language instruciion
60605.5 Revision of state standards þr world language instruction
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
I632 Alternative credits toward graduation far forcign language instructicn in priltate schco!
11,300-11316 Multílinguøl ønd English leqrner educøtion

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Prooosítíon 58 Resulations. l'øct Sheet, August 2018
Enelísh Learners ín Focus: The Enslísh Leørner Roødman: Provídíns Dírectíon for Enslísh Leørner
Success. Governønce Brief, Februøry 2018
Englísh Learners in Focus, Issue 2: The Promise o-f Two-Wqv Immersion Programs. Governance Brief,
September 2014
C' LIF O KNIA D E P A RTI¡IE NT O F E D U CATIO N P UB LIC ATIO NS

MultilinguøI FAQ
lloríd Lønguøses,Frameh,ork for Calífornia Publíc Schools. Kíndersarten Throush Grade Twelve
Californíø Spanísh Assessment Fact Sheet, March 2019
fr/^.-l) f -.^-,,^--- /a^-+^,-t e+^,^)--)- 1^,. î--l;4'^,-,-:- D",Ll:^ ?^l^^^I^ w:--.t^,-----+^-- TL,-^^.-l^ v.--)^ T-,.^l^.^f/Urtø LUtt¿UU¿CJffi ùLUtIUUIUJ tut vULLlltttLLU I Ull¿LL LtLt¿ttttt,\- t\¿tluctVUtLcr¿ lr¿rItUlt¿ rrtuue t tvclVC-

adepe{ Januarya'J&A9 20 I 9
Cøliforniø English Lesrner Roødmøn: Strenstheníne Comprehensive Educatíonal Policíes, Prosrøms
ønd Prøetices for Enslisk Leørners. 2017

CENTER FOR APPLIED LINGUISTICS PUBLICATIONS
Guiding Principles.for Dual Lansuage Educatíon, Second Edition. 2007

Mønagement Resources continued: (see next pøge)

BP 6142.2(Ð

WORLDÆ€}RSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

Management Resources: (continued)
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CKEDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS
CL-622 Serving Enslish Leørners
NATIONAL ED UCATIO N ASSOCL TION PUBLICATIONS
21st Centurv Skílls Møn: úlorld Lansuases, Jønaøry 2011
f f^fÍtrññÕrñ/ 

^D 
ñ 1f ,D^D^ff f^ /nf^^Íõ

u 1\ 1 y,ú1\)1 1 I \-/I Lâl-tf ulttV 1å. r U Dt-lVtt I tU1\ ù
A-C P"Iltv R"t""r.
WEB SITES
C S B A : hnp : //w,,vw. cs b a. or g
American Council on the Teachíng of Foreign Languages: http://www.actfl.org

130



C aliþrnia Association for B ilingual Education : hup : //www. gocabe. org
California Department of Education, Foreigft World Languages: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/fl
Califtrniø Language Teachers' Association: http : //www.clta.net
Califtrnía Foreigft World Language Project: hnp://www.stanford.edu/group/CFLP
€aWrnia Language Teaehers',4sseeiatien: http-:/hln¡l¡ç',eka,neí

C enter þ r App lie d Lin gui s tics: htþ ://www. cal. org
Natíonøl Educq.t¡on Assocíation, Partnershíp for 2lst Century Skills:
http ://www. ne ø org/home/3 4 I I 8. htm
University of California, @ A-G Polícy Resource Guíde: hup://www.ucop.edu/agguíde

(3109 3n7) 7ne

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019by California School Boards AssociatÍon, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Instruction

\MORLDIF'O*SI€N LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION

Content of Instruction

AP.6t42.2(a)

Note: Items #1é3 below reflect the &¡e three categories of content standards for world languages adopted by the
State Board of Education{SBEfen-tnJanuaryl51009 2019. Within each category, the state standards describe

131



four proficiency levels er perfermanee benehrnarks, Edr*eatien eede 60605,5; as added by ¿18 2290 (êh, 613;
St.tut€s ef 2016); requk

'f'L^ ¡:^+;^1.t^:^^+^,^+:^-^l -*^,-^* f^-,.,^-1J l^--,^^^^ ^L^ll L^ .1^-:-^) ¿^ L^t- ^ç-Å^^+^ ^^!^rllç ulJLrrulS llrùLruvll\rlr<rl yrrre¡¿r4rrr lrrr wrjllu r41réLr4ëçù ùrl4ll t 9 uçùréIrçu LL, uçlru ùLu$çrllt 5i1,tlr
knowledge about rae+v-ianguage systems, develop a culturai understarìding, and use tirai
knowledge to communicate. Students shall receive instruction which is aligned with state
^^^l^*:^ ^+^^,1^-Å^ ^---^-;^+^ +^ +L^:- ^-^ ^-l ^L^-^ ^f 1:^--:^a:^ ^-.l ^--lL--.^l ^-^C,^:^-^--:^ LL^4vcrr..slrllç ùL.llrLr¿nLrù 4PPruyrr4rt, LU Lllgu. aËl' alrrLr ùra1Ëç ut turËurslru auu ul'rrLLuilr l,lurrurçuuy rrr [ul'
f^l1 ^,,,:- ^ ^^+^^^; ^-.rurrv w ttrË v<lLvË\JIr!ù.

1, eentqrt: Sh*Cents shall be presented with a rvide variet)' ef eentent that is age arrd stage

}.l. Communication: Students shall be taught tc effecti.¿ely convey and receive messages by
engaging in or interpreting written, spoken, and/or signed languages., including:

Language functions, which describe the purposes to which language is used in
eultura-llya,pprop-r,ial€rcal-worldco-mm-unicatiqn

The setting in which the language is used, which includes using language both
wiflrin qn¡l hor¡nnrl fho nloscÉ^^rn fn inlfaronf in ln^ol ^^--tr-ifias on¡l olr-^o¡lcus vvJ ¡[lv¡ Evl ú rvLcr uu¡rr¡uuura¡lr cuu cu¡ vcu

The structures used to convey meaning

Cu1tures:Studentsshal1receiveinstructionthata1lowsthemtoM
interact, rvith competence and

u-nderstanding, with those who are native to the language h a variety of real-world
settings.

APt6142.2(b)

WORLDÆORSIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

þf. 6la2.9a - History-Social Scíence Instruction)

Connections: Students shall receive instruction that builds, reinforces, and expands
their knowledge of other disciplines using the language to develop criticat thinking

a.

b.

c.

2_J

+

3.

standards also address informatÍon Hteracy, technology literacy, media literacy, and emotional literacy as
outlined in the National Education Association's 2.1st Century Ski[s'Map.

The district may revise the following list to reflect *s topics teåe addressed in the district's world language
program.

L32



and problem-solving skillso and to access and evaluate information and diverse
perspectives readily or only available through the language and its cultures, in order
to function in real-world, academic 4nd career-related settings.

settiags,

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

Dual-Language Immersion Programs

Note: The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to establish a dual-language immersion
program integrating native English speakers and English learners in a class that is taught in both English and a
second language; see the accompanying Board policy.

ngeetiYe fuly lr 20tTt P
n¿ueatien ee¿e g tl t€ al*&er e

that best seits their eL:14 ÐisFiets must effer a struetured English :**ersien pregrarn in whieh searly all

Items #1-2 below reflect program models described on the California Department of Education's (CDE) web site
and may be revised to reflect district practice.

The district's dual-language immersion programs may be based on either or both of the following
models:

A 50:50 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 50
percent of the time and in English for 50 percent of the time, throughout the duration of the
proglam

A 90:10 model in which instruction is provided in the non-English target language for 90
percent of the time and in English for 10 percent of the time during the first year of the
program, decreasing the percentago of time in the non-English language in each subsequent
year until there is a 50:50 balance of languages 

AR 6l4Z.Z(c)

\ iORLDIIùOI¿EIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)

1

2

(cf. 617a - Educøtionfor Englßh Learners)

133

Netë The fellervifi€ twe paf,agræhs refleet reeernmeadatiensef t*re CÐE in its "Trve Way Lar$lage Iraffiersien
Pregrarn F^A;" evail# i€e'



Native English speakers shall generally be admitted into the program only during the first grade
ievel at which qnd E1rgligll le_amers dqq4g_the lrslor second grade leyel
at which the program is offered. Bilingual students may enter the program at any time. On a case-
by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may adrnit a student later in the program if h€kh€
d€Ê€ffiinês, it Ís determined that the student is adequatelv orenared for and will benefit from the
program.

Note: The following paragraph reflects the recommendation of CDE in its "Multilingual FAQ'" available
sn its we'o site, and may be revised to reflect district practice.

In enrolling students for the proefam, the distriet shall strive to maintain a ratio of half native
Engiish speakers and haif English iearners, and such ratio shaii not faii beiow one-third for either
language group except under exceptionai circumstances.

Note: The following paragraph may be deleted by districts that do not of[er a dual-language immersion program
in any of grades K-3.
tffguege ee$+isitien p

Any dual-language immersion program offered in grades K-3 shall comply with class size
requirements specified in Education Code 42n8.A2. (Education Code 310)

(cf 615l - Class Size)

Note: Teachers in a class serving one or more English learners are required to possess the qualifications describcd
in Ëducation Code 44253.144253.11 and CTC leaflet Õt-022, Servine Enelish Learners. Also see AR 4l 12.22 -
Staff Learners,

Whenever one ormore English learners are enrolled in a dual-lang.rage immersion classroom, the
class shall be taught by a teacher who possesses the appropriate authonzation issued by the
Commission on Teacher Credenti abng.

(cf. 4l12.22 - StaffTeaching English Learners)

At the beginning of each school year or upon a student's enroiiment, parentsiguardians shaii be
provided information on the district's dual-language immersion program and other language
acquisition programs available to students enrolled in the district, including, but not limited to, a
description of each program. (Education Code 310)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

AP.6r42.2(d)

Wete: feaeners in a ela
i
@

L34

WORLDÆOREIGN LANGUAGE INSTRUCTION (continued)



Whelrever ene er mere English learners are errelled in a ér*al langtrage irnmersien elassreem; the

in.

(4 ll 12,22 Støff Teaelting Englßh Leame9

Note: Pursuant to 5 CCR 11311, districts are required to establish a process for schools to receive and
respond to requests from parents/guardians of students enrolled in the school to establish a language
acquisition program other than, or in addition to, programs available at the school. When the request is for
a dual-language immersion program, requests from parents/guardians of enrolled students who are native
speakers of English shall be considered along with requests from parents/guardians of English learners in
determÍning whether the threshold has been met to require district response. See AR 6L74 - Education for
English Learners.

If a school does not currently offer r dual-Ianguage immersion program but the
parents/guardians of 30 or more students at the school, or 20 or more students at the same
grade level, request the establishment of such a program, the district shall determine whether
it is possible to offer such a program in accordance with 5 CCR 11311.

(3t09 3^7) 7ne

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2019 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reseled.

CSBA Sample
Administrative Regulation

Instruction

ATHLETIC COMPETITION

AR 6145.2(a)

135.


